
OUR VISION
To become a leading Microfinance Bank 

through Excellent customer services and superior 
performance.

OUR MISSION 
To sa�sfy the customers’ needs by listening to them

and delivering well designed products
mindful of the need for honest and

transparent opera�ons.
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MOST REV. PROF. GODFREY IGWEBUIKE ONAH
Bishop of the Catholic Diocese of Nsukka

Chief Promoter, KMFB



thNotice is hereby given that the 9  Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of 

Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc. (KMFB) is scheduled to hold at                   

Princess Alexandra Auditorum, University of Nigeria Nsukka on November 

22, 2019 to transact the following businesses:- 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

4. To approve the remuneration of the Directors.

A shareholder qualified to attend and vote at the meeting is also qualified to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
on his/her behalf. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the bank.  A proxy form is hereby attached with the 
notice of meeting and for it to be valid, must be stamped, signed and delivered to the bank not later than forty-
eight (48) hours before the meeting.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER
stThe Shareholders’ Register was closed at 12:00 noon, on 31  December, 2018. Consequently, all Shareholders 

whose names appeared in the register as at the time of closure are entitled to receive notice, attend and vote at 
the meeting.

5. To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

To properly and fully attend to your questions, shareholders are required to send in their written questions (if 
any) to reach the Company Secretary, Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc's Head Office at least forty-
eight (48) hours before the Annual General Meeting.

2. To declare dividend

1. To receive the report of the Directors, Audited Account for the years                         
stended 31  December, 2018 together with the reports of the Auditors.

3. To re-elect Directors.

PROXY 

Bishop Shanahan Hospital Annex
Nsukka

(Company Secretary)
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

No. 46 Enugu Road,

3
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Director
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Director
Director
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT PRESENTED TO THE 
TH

SHAREHOLDERS AT THE 9  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(AGM) OF KENECHUKWU MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA 

NDPLC NSUKKA, TODAY, 22 NOVEMBER, 2019

In spite of the harsh operating environment last year, our Bank did well and generated above 
average results.  The Bank maintained steady growth in all financial indices, as will be expatiated 
later.

thYet again, on March 7  2019, the CBN issued another circular which revised the earlier circular 
nd th

they issued on 22  October 2018 on the same issue. Their 7  March 2019 circular reads thus: 
“Further to our circular dated October 22, 2018 on the above subject, the CBN has revised the 
categories of microfinance banks with a view of ensuring continued operations of microfinance 
banks in the rural, unbanked and underbanked areas of the economy. Accordingly, Unit 
Microfinance Banks shall comprise two tiers: Tier 1 Unit Microfinance Bank, which shall operate 
in the urban and high-density banked areas of the society; and Tier 2 Unit Microfinance Bank, 

It is my pleasure also to acquaint you with the developments in our Bank since our last meeting on 
th

27  October, 2018.  At that last Annual General Meeting, I updated you on the “Right Issue sale of 
our bank's shares” which was aimed at raising funds for our Branch expansion.  The “Right Issue” 

st
sale ended on 31  December, 2018.  The combined efforts of the Board, Management and Staff of 
the Bank resulted in the realization of additional share holders' fund of N71.1m from the rights 
issue sale of our bank's shares.  I want to thank you Distinguished Shareholders for keeping faith in 
the Bank.  

th
At that same 27  October 2018 AGM, we informed you that the Central Bank of Nigeria has 
reviewed upwards the minimum capital requirements for Microfinance Banks in Nigeria as 

ndcontained in their circular dated 22  October 2018.

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA REVIEW OF MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 
FOR MICROFINANCE BANKS IN NIGERIA

The Bishop Emeritus and founder of our Bank, Most Rev. Dr. F.E.O. 
Okobo, 

My co-members of the Board of Directors, 
Distinguished Shareholders, 

Highly valued customers, 
The Management and Staff of the Bank, 

Invited guests, 
Ladies and Gentlemen.

thIt is my pleasure to welcome you all today, to the 9  Annual General Meeting (AGM) of our highly 
valued Bank, Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc to access, analyze and appreciate the 

stbusiness and financial records of your Bank for the year ended, 31  December, 2018.

The Catholic Bishop of Nsukka Diocese and Chief Promoter, His 
Excellency, Most Rev. Prof. Godfrey Igwebuike Onah, 

Representatives of the Clergy, the Central Bank of Nigeria, the 
Nigeria Deposit Insurance Corporation, Our External Auditors, 
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3.  State Microfinance Bank   N1,000,000,000 (one billion naira)

which shall operate only in the rural, unbanked or underbanked areas.

1.  Tier 1 Unit Microfinance Bank   N200,000,000 (two hundred million naira)
2.  Tier 2 Unit Microfinance Bank  N50,000,000 (fifty million naira)

Following from the above, the minimum capital requirements for the categories of microfinance 
banks have also been revised as follows:

4.  National Microfinance Bank  N5,000,000,000 (five billion naira)

(i) Tier 1 Unit Microfinance Banks shall meet a N100 million capital threshold by April 2020 
and N200 million by April 2021;

(iii) A State Microfinance Bank shall increase its capital to N500 million by April 2020 and N1 
billion by April 2021 and 

This revised circular supersedes our circular referenced FPR/DIR/GEN/CIR/07/016 of October 
22, 2018”.

(ii) Tier 2 Unit Microfinance Banks shall meet a N35 million capital threshold by April 2020 
and N50 million by April 2021;

To aid the process of recapitalization, all microfinance banks shall be required to comply with the 
following:

(iv) A National Microfinance Bank shall hold a capital of N3.5 billion by April 2020 and N5 
billion by April 2021.

The Board and the management of our bank are currently making serious efforts to ensure that we 
raise the minimum capital base of our bank to N1,000,000,000.00 (one billion naira) by April 2021 
as required of us as a State Microfinance Bank. We the share-holders of the bank should take this 
development as a huge challenge. 

If we cannot raise the minimum capital base of our bank to one billion naira by April 2021 as 
required of us by the CBN, the implication is that our bank will be demoted from State 
Microfinance Bank to a Unit Microfinance Bank that is allowed to have only one branch (Head 
Office branch) and another branch within the Local Government Area where its Head Office is 
located. 

Specifically, our failure to meet this target will mean that our Orba, Obollo-Afor, Ibagwa-Aka, 
Enugu-Ezike and Adani Branches which are all located outside Nsukka Local Government Area 
where our Head Office is located must be closed down. Our shareholders' funds (capital base) as at 

th30  September 2019 was N522m. We need to raise fresh capital of about N500m to meet the N1b 
minimum capital base, required of us as a State Microfinance Bank.

PRIVATE PLACEMENT SALE OF OUR BANK’S SHARES
The Board has already arranged for Private Placement Sale of our bank's shares to raise the needed 
additional capital of about N500m to push our minimum capital base to one billion naira. 
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Their retirement is in compliance with the Central Bank of Nigeria's Guidelines for Microfinance 
Banks in Nigeria which stipulates that the tenure for a director in Microfinance Bank is four (4) 
years which can be renewed two times; bringing a maximum tenure for directors to twelve (12) 
years. Each of these directors has served for twelve (12) years as at July 2019.

The Board Chairman has patriotically accepted to extend his tenure by one year to guide our bank 
achieve the required new capital base.

The three directors contributed significantly to the rapid growth of the bank since the bank 
commenced operations on August 1 2007, mostly because they placed integrity paramount in the 
discharge of their oversight function. They were determined to make KMFB a leading and in fact 
model MFB. As a Catholic Church Bank, they strived to make it a medium of evangelization, a 
forum for imparting the Social teaching of the Church via transparency and Corporate 
Governance, a forum to demonstrate that profit can be made in a clean and transparent way. 
Paramount among the major causes of the failure of MFBs in Nigeria are insider abuses by the 
directors of the banks, failure to strictly comply to the prudential guidelines set by CBN and failure 
also to observe Corporate Governance rules in directing the affairs of the bank.  The directors 
made conscious and concerted efforts to guard against these lapses. 

 2. Prof. Ifeoma Mary Okwo
 3. Barr. Gabriel Ofodile Okafor (SAN)

 1. Mr. Cosmas Odo

The Chief Promoter of our Bank has nominated the following three prominent indigenes of 
Nsukka Cultural Zone to replace the retiring directors.

Our Board Chairman, Dr. Steve A. Okolo would have been due to also retire in December 2019 but 
the Chief Promoter of our bank, The Bishop of Catholic Diocese of Nsukka, Most Rev. Prof. 

st
Godfrey Igwebuike Onah has requested him to extend his tenure to 31  December 2020 due to the 
directive by the Central Bank of Nigeria that our bank, as a State Microfinance Bank, should raise 
our capital base to one billion naira by April 2021. He stated that our Board Chairman has set the 
machinery in motion for an aggressive drive to raise the capital base of the bank to the new Central 
Bank of Nigeria requirement hence to accept his retirement now will adversely affect or slow 
down this drive.

RETIREMENT OF TWO PIONEER DIRECTORS IN DECEMBER 2019 AND 
EXTENSION OF TENURE OF OUR BOARD CHAIRMAN BY ONE YEAR
Our two pioneer directors will retire in December 2019. The retiring Directors are:

1) Professor Lawrence O. Ocho and 

The Private Placement Sale of our bank's shares is for subscription by the existing shareholders 
and newcomers (prospective shareholders) at the rate of N2.00 per share. A subscriber is expected 
to buy at least 100,000 shares and pay N200,000.00 for the shares subscribed for at the rate of 
N2.00 per share. You are all required to increase your investments in the bank by buying more 

th
shares in this private placement programme that has already commenced and will close on 6  May 
2020 to raise the capital base of the bank to the required level and retain the status of our bank as a 
state microfinance bank.

2) Chief Nduka I. Eya. 
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BRANCH EXPANSION 

thThe new Directors were invited to both our Board Meeting of yesterday and our 9  Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) today.

Also, as you were informed in the last Annual General Meeting, Ibagwa-Aka Branch opened for 
st thbusiness on 1  June, 2018 but was officially commissioned on 6  September, 2018.  I am happy to 

inform you that Enugu-Ezike and Adani Branches of our bank commenced business in August 
2019 and September 2019 respectively.  Ogbede Branch is expected to open for business in due 
course. It has been approved by Central Bank of Nigeria.

Major Central Banks continued to tighten their monetary policies over the course of the year, 
which led to some dampening effects in global growth.

* Exchange rate and capital flows:  As of early July 2018, the United State dollar 
strengthened by over 5% in real effective terms while Euro, Japanese Yen and British Pound 
Sterling were broadly unchanged.

THE GLOBAL ECONOMY IN 2018:

Global issues that shaped economic growth in 2018 were mostly politically driven.  Aside trade 
tensions between the United State and its various trading counterparts, mostly China, there were 
also concerns about Brexit developments and various geopolitical tensions across the globe.

* Commodity prices and inflation:  Largely reflecting supply shortfalls, global oil prices 
increased to 16% between February, 2018 and early June, 2018. The Brent crude oil in 
November 2018 was sold at N64.75 per barrel while in December 2018 it went down to 
N57.36 per barrel.

The review of global economic indicators indicated that global economic growth remained steady, 
exceeding 3% in annualized terms, over the first 6-9 months of 2018.

* Financial conditions in advanced economies:  With former readings on inflation and 
strong job creation, the United State Federal Reserve continued the course of gradual policy 
normalization.

* Financial conditions in emerging markets:  Central Banks in key emerging market 
economies – including Argentina, India, Indonesia, Mexico and Turkey –raised policy 
rates, responding to inflation and exchange rate pressures.

THE DOMESTIC ECONOMY:
Nigeria relies heavily on oil as its main source of foreign exchange earnings and government 
revenue.  Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth was an estimated 1.9% in 2018.  Growth in 
agriculture was lackluster; due partly to clashes between herdsmen and farmers coupled with 
flooding in key middle-belt regions and continued insurgency in the North East.

Sources: OPEC 2018 Annual Report and IMF – World Economic Outlook Update.

On the macro economic front, the delay by parliament in approving the 2018 budget affected 
implementation and increased fiscal uncertainty by pushing the bulk of the spending to the second 
half of the year.
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From the above presentation, between 2014 and 2018, we had an average annual increase of 
23.1% in deposit level.  As you can see, your Bank is doing very well as regards deposit 
mobilization considering the fact that there is always stiff competition among the banks for 
deposit.

Distinguished Shareholders, below is a chart showing our Bank's five years profit after tax (PAT) 
trend:

DEPOSIT MOBILIZATION:
The Bank's deposit levels in the last five years are as follows: -

By June, 2018, the stock of public debt stood at $73.2 billion, up from $71.0 billion in 2017 
representing 17.5% of Gross Domestic Product.  In November, 2018, the government issued a 
Eurobond of $2.9 billion, which reflects its new debt management strategy of prioritizing foreign 
debt to mitigate the high financing costs of domestic borrowers.

The largely subsistence agricultural sector has not kept up with rapid population growth, and 
Nigeria, once a large net exporter of food, now imports some of her food products.

Source: African Economic Outlook (AEO) 2019.

stThe Bank ended 2018 with a total loan portfolio of N964.6m up from N808.6m it was as at 31  
December, 2017.  This represents an increase of N156m or 19.3%.  Out of the N964.6m, N908.6m 

st
or 94.2% of the loans were performing.  Our portfolio At Risk (PAR) as at 31  December, 2018 
was 5.8% just 0.8% above the Central Bank of Nigeria regulatory benchmark of 5%.  This also 
confirms that Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc is a leading Microfinance Bank in Nigeria 
with regards to the quality of its loan assets.

LOAN PORTFOLIO/RISK ASSETS:

From 2014 to 2015, our deposit level increased from N587.3m to N677.9m representing 28.7% 
increase.  In 2016, the deposit level increased to N796.5m representing 17.5% increase from 2015.  
As at December 2018, the deposit level increased to N1.2b representing 24.9% increase over the 
previous year.

It was under these changing macro-economic conditions in the domestic economy that your Bank 
operated in 2018 and yet performed well above average.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Parameter 2018 
(NM) 

2017 
(NM) 

2016 
(NM) 

2015 
(NM) 

2014 
(NM) 

Total Deposit 1,205.6 965.3 796.5 677.9 587.3 
% Increase/ Decrease 24.9% 21.2% 17.5% 28.7% - 

 

Year Amount  
(NM)) 

Incremental Amount  
(NM)) 

% Increase from 
Previous Years  

2018 85.4 3.7 4.5% 
2017 81.7 20.9 34% 
2016 60.8 23.5 69.4% 
2015 35.5 4.6 16.2% 
2014 30.9 - - 
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Below is a bar chart representation of the profit after tax (PAT) showing a clear picture of the financial; 
st sttrend analysis for the five years from 31  December, 2014 to 31  December, 2018: -

From the above financial presentation, we can see that the Board of Directors while providing good 
corporate governance and oversight functions has been guiding the Bank to greater heights.  Also, the 
Management and Staff have been committed to implementing the policies set by the Board.  The 
Church has been very supportive all these years which helps the Bank in achieving the results we are 
seeing.  The commitment of our loyal customers who patronize our products and services is highly 
appreciated for without the customers, the results will not be there.

DIVIDEND:
In the year 2018 under consideration, our bank recorded Profit After Tax of N85.4m. Based on the 
good result we could have paid handsome dividend but our Board is recommending that we plough 
our 2018 Profit After Tax back to our shareholders' funds to help us raise our minimum capital base to 
N1b  by April 2021 as required of us by the CBN. Esteemed shareholders, I believe that you will agree 
with me that it is a wise decision to plough our 2018 profit after Tax back to shareholders' funds to beef 
up our capital base as required by the CBN. Recall that for nine consecutive years from 2009 to 2017, 
we declared and paid dividends.

HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT:

The Board sent our Managing Director on Leadership Training at the prestigious Lagos Business 
School, Aja, Lagos. The training lasted for six months from September 2018 to February 2019.

A member of our staff on study leave has completed both his programme and National Youth Service 
Corps (NYSC) and has resumed duties with the Bank in August 2019.

Also, your Bank has done very well with respect to human capital development.  Our members of Staff 
have continued to excel in the Charted Institute of Bankers of Nigeria Microfinance Certification 
Programme professional examinations.  In 2018, five of our workers passed the examination and are 
now Microfinance Certified Bankers and have also gone for their induction in Lagos in August 2019.  
Other members of Staff have also gone for different professional trainings and courses during the year 
under review.

Your Bank is fully committed to human capital development because we need dedicated and well 
skilled workers to excel.
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EMPLOYMENT OF WORKERS:
The Board and Management of our Bank provides candidates seeking employment with a level 
playing ground to enable them actualize their dreams of working with the Bank.  Recruitment and 
selection are done in a fair and transparent manner.  

Our Bank also ensures that employment is done in such a way as to ensure spread among the seven 
Local Government Areas under the Catholic Diocese of Nsukka without compromising on quality.

Within the period under review, we employed an additional seventy one (71) workers who are 
presently working in different positions in the branches of the Bank.  Our staff strength has been on 
consistent growth from eighty eight (88) workers in 2014 to two hundred and eight (208) regular 
workers presently.  We also have a total of seventy nine (79) Industrial Trainees giving a combined 
total of two hundred and eighty seven (287) workers.

APPRECIATION:

* To our Distinguished Shareholders for their investments in the bank, support and belief in the 
vision and mission of our Bank.

Chairman, Board of Directors,

* To the Founder and Bishop Emeritus, Most Rev. (Dr.) F.E.O. Okobo for giving us Kenechukwu 
Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc.

Dr. Steve A. Okolo

* To our Management Team and Staff, for their hard work, initiatives and commitment to the 
Bank's goals.

Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc,
Nsukka, Enugu State.

* To the representatives of the Central Bank of Nigeria and the Nigeria Deposit Insurance 
Corporation for their onerous efforts in the areas of financial inclusion and sound bank 
management through regulation and supervision of Microfinance Banks. 

* To our Board for their visionary leadership, good corporate governance, amiable dedication to 
duty and painstaking dexterity with which they scrutinize the Bank's affairs.

Ladies and Gentlemen, we say thank you:

God bless you and thank you for listening.

* To our Chief Promoter, our Father Bishop, Most Rev. Prof. Godfrey Igwebuike Onah for your 
prayers, guidance, encouragement and blessings.

* To our Valued Customers for their interest in our products and services and remaining steadfast 
in the face of stiff competition.

May God guide you all safely back to your respective homes.
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Chairman, Board of Directors,
Dr. Steve A. Okolo

Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc,
Nsukka, Enugu State.

The Board and Management of our Bank provides candidates seeking employment with a level 
playing ground to enable them actualize their dreams of working with the Bank.  Recruitment and 
selection are done in a fair and transparent manner.  

Our Bank also ensures that employment is done in such a way as to ensure spread among the seven 
Local Government Areas under the Catholic Diocese of Nsukka without compromising on quality.

EMPLOYMENT OF WORKERS:

* To our Valued Customers for their interest in our products and services and remaining steadfast 
in the face of stiff competition.

* To our Management Team and Staff, for their hard work, initiatives and commitment to the 
Bank's goals.

Within the period under review, we employed an additional seventy one (71) workers who are 
presently working in different positions in the branches of the Bank.  Our staff strength has been on 
consistent growth from eighty eight (88) workers in 2014 to two hundred and eight (208) regular 
workers presently.  We also have a total of seventy nine (79) Industrial Trainees giving a combined 
total of two hundred and eighty seven (287) workers.

APPRECIATION:
Ladies and Gentlemen, we say thank you:

* To our Distinguished Shareholders for their investments in the bank, support and belief in the 
vision and mission of our Bank.

* To the representatives of the Central Bank of Nigeria and the Nigeria Deposit Insurance 
Corporation for their onerous efforts in the areas of financial inclusion and sound bank 
management through regulation and supervision of Microfinance Banks. 

* To the Founder and Bishop Emeritus, Most Rev. (Dr.) F.E.O. Okobo for giving us Kenechukwu 
Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc.

* To our Chief Promoter, our Father Bishop, Most Rev. Prof. Godfrey Igwebuike Onah for your 
prayers, guidance, encouragement and blessings.

May God guide you all safely back to your respective homes.

God bless you and thank you for listening.

* To our Board for their visionary leadership, good corporate governance, amiable dedication to 
duty and painstaking dexterity with which they scrutinize the Bank's affairs.
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Harmonious relationship has continued to exist among the Stakeholders in the Bank.  The 
Shareholders are happy with the Board, Management and Staff of the Bank as they have 
continued to receive commensurate returns on their investments in the Bank.  The Government 
and their regulatory agencies are satisfied with the manner the Bank is managed and the 
financial results being generated since the inception of the Bank.  The Banks pay their tax 
obligations to the Local, State and Federal Governments as and when due.  The Board is made 
up of highly learned professionals of high level integrity who observe organizational corporate 
governance and gives right directives to the Management and Staff of the Bank and allows them 
free hands to operate.  The workers are committed, contented and respect one another.  There is 

ORGANIZATIONAL HARMONY:

The cost of gas throughout 2018 was stable and gas available at the average cost of N240.00 per 
litre but constant outage of public power forced all the Banks in our area to operate with their 
generating sets most of the time and spent heavy amounts of money in buying gas to power these 
generators.  The cost of the gas impacted negatively on the bottom lines of these Banks.

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW OF OUR BANK'S PERFORMANCE IN THE 
YEAR 2018

The Chief Promoter and the Bishop of Catholic Diocese of Nsukka, Most 
Rev. Prof. Godfrey Igwebuike Onah, the Bishop Emeritus of the Catholic 
Diocese of Nsukka and the founder of our Bank, Most Rev. Dr. F.E.O. 
Okobo, the Chairman, Board of Directors and other Board Members, the 
Management and Staff of Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc, 
Representatives of the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) and Nigeria Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (NDIC), our External Auditors, Distinguished 
Shareholders, Invited Guests, Ladies and Gentlemen.

th
I feel privileged and honoured to welcome all of you to the 9  Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of our great Bank, Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc, for the 

st
year ended, 31  December, 2018.

INDUSTRIAL REVIEW:

Banking business in Nigeria in 2018 for both Microfinance Banks and Commercial Banks 
(Deposit Money Banks) was very tough.  Bad loans have continued to be huge challenge to 
these banks.  Our Bank is managing our loan portfolio efficiently.  Non-performing loan has 
never posed threat to our Bank as the percentage is bearable.  Out of our total loan portfolio of 

stN964.6m as at 31  December, 2018 only 5.8% of it was not performing.  Average percentage of 
stnon-performing loans among all Microfinance Banks in Nigeria as at 31  December, 2018 was 

22%.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW OF OUR BANK'S PERFORMANCE IN THE 
YEAR 2018

INDUSTRIAL REVIEW:

The Chief Promoter and the Bishop of Catholic Diocese of Nsukka, Most 
Rev. Prof. Godfrey Igwebuike Onah, the Bishop Emeritus of the Catholic 
Diocese of Nsukka and the founder of our Bank, Most Rev. Dr. F.E.O. 
Okobo, the Chairman, Board of Directors and other Board Members, the 
Management and Staff of Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc, 
Representatives of the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) and Nigeria Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (NDIC), our External Auditors, Distinguished 
Shareholders, Invited Guests, Ladies and Gentlemen.

Banking business in Nigeria in 2018 for both Microfinance Banks and Commercial Banks 
(Deposit Money Banks) was very tough.  Bad loans have continued to be huge challenge to 
these banks.  Our Bank is managing our loan portfolio efficiently.  Non-performing loan has 
never posed threat to our Bank as the percentage is bearable.  Out of our total loan portfolio of 

stN964.6m as at 31  December, 2018 only 5.8% of it was not performing.  Average percentage of 
stnon-performing loans among all Microfinance Banks in Nigeria as at 31  December, 2018 was 

22%.

th
I feel privileged and honoured to welcome all of you to the 9  Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of our great Bank, Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc, for the 

st
year ended, 31  December, 2018.

Harmonious relationship has continued to exist among the Stakeholders in the Bank.  The 
Shareholders are happy with the Board, Management and Staff of the Bank as they have 
continued to receive commensurate returns on their investments in the Bank.  The Government 
and their regulatory agencies are satisfied with the manner the Bank is managed and the 
financial results being generated since the inception of the Bank.  The Banks pay their tax 
obligations to the Local, State and Federal Governments as and when due.  The Board is made 
up of highly learned professionals of high level integrity who observe organizational corporate 
governance and gives right directives to the Management and Staff of the Bank and allows them 
free hands to operate.  The workers are committed, contented and respect one another.  There is 

The cost of gas throughout 2018 was stable and gas available at the average cost of N240.00 per 
litre but constant outage of public power forced all the Banks in our area to operate with their 
generating sets most of the time and spent heavy amounts of money in buying gas to power these 
generators.  The cost of the gas impacted negatively on the bottom lines of these Banks.

ORGANIZATIONAL HARMONY:
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peace and tranquility in the system which has greatly contributed to the good results the Bank 
has been generating all these years.

In compliance with the statutory requirement, the amount of N10.7m representing 12.5% of 
profit after tax of N85.4m for 2018 was transferred to Statutory Reserve while N74.7m out of the 
Profit After Tax was transferred to Retained Earnings Reserve (General Reserve).  Even though 
our Bank made reasonable profit the Board and Management of our Bank deem it wise to plough 
back all the Profit After Tax we made in 2018 back to Shareholders' Funds to help in beefing up 
the Bank's capital base to N1b by April, 2021 as directed by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) 
hence cash dividend was not proposed for our 2018 financial year.  Our Chairman's Statement 
treated dividend issue in detail.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

Our Bank performed satisfactorily in 2018 under review.  We generated a gross income of 
N352m and made Profit Before Tax of N96.3m provision for Company Income Tax was 
N10.8m leaving us with profit after tax of N85.4m

APPROPRIATIONS:

You can see from our Chairman's Statement that our Bank's Profit After Tax trend for the past 
five years shows consistent improvement.  We will strive to sustain this positive trend.

Thank you so much for listening.

Managing Director/CEO

Chris O. Ezema
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Chief Isaac Nduka Eya
Director
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Chris O. Ezema 
Managing Director/CEO

Very Rev. Msgr. Emma C. Ugwu
Executive Director 

Mr. Ugwoke Vitus 
Branch Manager Orba

Mrs. Ajibo Roseline C. 
Branch Manager Obollo-Afor

Mr. Enete Andrew A. 
Branch Manager Nsukka Main

Mr. Odo Simon E.
Branch Manager Ibagwa-Aka

Mr. Nwankwo Ephraim O. 
Branch Manager Enugu-Ezike

Mr. Omeh Jude C.
Branch Manager Adani

Mr. Eze John Paulinus O. 
Marketing Manager, 

Enugu-Ezike Branch)

Mrs. Nwabeze Nkiruka 
Manager Internal Audit, 

Head Office

Mr. Odo Festus O. 
Operational Manager, 
Nsukka Main Branch

Mrs. Eze Chidiebere H. 
Credit Manager, 

Nsukka Main Branch

Mr. Christian O. Asadu 
Marketing Manager, 
Nsukka Main Branch

Mrs. Ngozi J. Mba 
Manager Finance & Admin., 

Head Office)

Mr. Eze Emmanuel I. 
Operational Manager, 
Obollo-Afor Branch

Mr. Ugwu Celestine I. 
Operational Manager, 

Orba Branch

Mr. Eze Malachy T. 
Manager Information  

Communication 
Technology, Head Office)

Mr. Abugu Gabriel 
Risk Manager/Compliance 

Officer, Head Office

Mr. Omeje Sylvester 
Head, Accounts & Transfer, 

Nsukka Main Branch

Mr. Urama Felix 
Marketing Manager, 
Obollo-Afor Branch



16

KMFB ANNUAL REPORT 2019

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

(CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF DIRECTORS)

DR. STEVE ANAGO OKOLO 

Dr. S.A. Okolo is currently the Managing Director of Zebbra Energy Limited 
an Oil Exploration and Production Company, with head office in Lagos.Dr. 
Okolo is a petroleum Eplorationist, a Geologist by training specializing in 
sedimentology. He worked for Texaco overseas petroleum company for 
11years mostly in Nigeria but also in US and London. He also worked for Pan 
Ocean Oil Corporation for 20 years, firstly as the chief Geologist but 
subsequently as their Exploration Manager, General Manager (Exploration) 

and finally as the Group General Manager before, retiring to work for Zebra energy Limited as 
the Managing Director.

Dr. S.A. Okolo studied at the university of Nigeria, Nsukka, university of Kentucky, U.S.A. and 
the University of Keele, Stafford Shire, England, where he obtained his first degree, Master 
Degree and Doctorate Degree in Geology respectively. He has attended many International 
Conferences in his area of specialization, author and co-author of many geological 
publications, and including six books. He has held several high positions in companies and 
organizations within and outside Nigeria since graduation.

He was the president of Nigeria Association of petroleum Explorationist (NAPE), a fellow of 
NAPE, a fellow Nigeria Mining & Geosciences (NMGS), American Association of Petroleum 
Geologist (AAPG) and International Association of sedimentologist (IAS). He was the 
chairman of oil producers Trade Section (OPTS Exploration Sub-Committee) of the Nigeria 
Chamber of Commerce and a Director of Nicon Insurance Corporation. 

Mr. Ezema is a member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers of Nigeria (CIBN) and a Certified 
Microfinance Banker of the Institute.  He is an alumnus of the prestigious Lagos Business 
School Aja, Lagos, Nigeria

MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO

Mr. C.O. Ezema is a Banker.  He attended Benue State Polytechnic Ugbokolo 
where he obtained HND in Accounting. He worked in various capacities with 
the defunct AfriBank (Nig.) Plc from 1982 to 2004.

He is one of the pioneer management staff of our Bank and joined the Bank as 
Head of Banking Operations and worked in this capacity from July 2007 to January 2013.

In 2013, he was appointed the substantive Managing Director/CEO of the Bank. Having 
performed creditably for one year in that position, his appointment as the Managing 
Director/CEO of the Bank was confirmed in January, 2015.    

MR. C.O. EZEMA 
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He has held many important positions including Managing Director Nigercem, Nkalagu, 
Provost, Federal College of Education, Eha-Amufu, Director Mature Student Programme, 
ESUT, Chairman, Aku Diewa Microfinance Bank among others.  Prof. Ocho is a fellow of 
Nigeria Academy of Education and Institute of Administrative Management of Nigeria.

PROFESSOR LAWRENCE OFFIE OCHO

Author, Lecturer, Administrator, Historian and Professor of Education, Prof. 
Ocho attended: St. Charles College Onitsha, University of Nigeria Nsukka and 
the University of Wales, (University College, Cardiff) where he obtained 
Grade II Teachers Certificate, BA Ed, MA and Ph.D respectively.
His special area is education administration.  His working experience covered 
his teaching career in primary and post primary schools for nearly twenty 
years, Lecturer at ABU, Kano, Anambra State College of Education Awka, 

Federal College of Education, Eha-Amufu, Enugu State University of Science and Technology, 
(ESUT) and Ebonyi State University Abakiliki.  

His community conferred on him the Chieftaincy Title of Okweshilieze I of Aku for his 
contribution to his community.  He is a progressive author with over twenty-five books, nearly 
twenty articles in international journals and has presented nearly thirty paper publications in 
national and international conferences.  He is a member of the Order of the Knights of St. 
Mulumba.

Chief Eya is an educationist.  He is a pioneer graduate of University of 
Nigeria Nsukka where he served as the first Secretary of that institution's 
Student Union.  He started his working career as a Teacher at the Owerri 
Girls Secondary School before he joined the staff of his Alma Mata as an 
Administrative Staff.  He rose to the rank of Principal Assistant Registrar 
before he was appointed the pioneer Registrar of the Federal Polytechnic, 
Idah, Kogi State.    He later joined the Civil Service of the then Anambra 
State as Permanent Secretary.He later became the State's Commissioner for Education, a post 
he carried over to the old Enugu State when the later was created.  He later became Special 
Adviser on Commerce and Industry to the Governor of the new State.

Chief Eya helped to nurture the Osisatech Polytechnic Enugu where he served as a Registrar 
before he joined the National Electoral Commission (INEC) as Resident Electoral 
Commissioner. He holds many awards and several publications to his credit. He is a fellow of 
the Chartered Institute of Personnel Management of Nigeria (FCIPM) and has attended many 
seminars, workshops and conferences. Chief Eya is a special Marshal of the Federal Road 
Safety Commission, a member of the ICPC Volunteer Corps and Currently the Scout 
Commissioner for Enugu State. He was the immediate past Secretary General of Ohaneze 
Ndigbo, the Apex Igbo Cultural Organization. Chief Eya is happily married to Prof. (Mrs.) 
Regina Eya and has six children.

CHIEF ISAAC NDUKA EYA
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MR. EMEKA ANTHONY ODO
Mr. Emeka Odo attended; St. Aidan's Secondary school Umezeoka Abakiliki, 
Ebonyi State where he obtained his WASC in 1981, University of Nigeria 
Nsukka and Enugu State University of Science and Technology where he 
obtained B.sc (Hons) Second Class Upper division in Mass Communication 
and Masters in Business Administration (MBA) respectively.

Mr. Emeka Anthony Odo is a seasoned banker with over nineteen years of 
banking experience. He worked with defunct Intercontinental Bank Plc where he held various 
positions and responsibilities and left the Bank in 2010 as an Executive Director, Lagos 
Corporate Banking.
Mr. Emeka Odo is currently the Managing Director of Bluewaters Capital Limited, a finance 
company with its corporate headquarters at Lagos.
As a seasoned banker whose experience spans through Retail Banking, Public Sector Banking, 
Corporate Banking as well as International Finance and Microfinance Banking, he was 
appointed a Director of Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank in March 2015 to help in the 
realization of the strategic vision of the Bank.  

Dr. Basil A.N. Onugu attended: University of Nigeria Nsukka where he 
obtained B.Sc (Hons) in Maths Ed. and Statistics as the best graduating 
student in 1972.  He furthered his studies at Ahmadu Below university Zaria 
and University of Colorado, Boulder, USA and obtained Diploma in 
Business Administration (March 1977) and Economics (September, 1977) 
respectively.  He got his MBA, Finance Major, Accounting Minor from 
Sloan School of Management, Massachusetts Institute of Technology 
Cambridge, USA from 1977-1979.  He also got Diploma in Banking and Development Finance 
from Manchester Business School, Manchester, England in 1980.  He got his Ph.D in 
Management with specialization in management of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
(MSMES) in 2006 from St. Clements University, UK.  He equally attended many professional 
training to his credits.

Dr. Basil A.N. Onugu has worked in many establishments with vital positions.   He worked as a 
consultant with Centre for Management Development from 1979-1981.  He also worked as Ag. 
Controller, Operations with Central Investment Co. Ltd from 1981-1984.  He went further and 
worked as Assistant Manager of Nigerian-American Merchant Bank Ltd from 1984-1988.  
From 1988-1990, he held a position of Manager, Corporate Finance of Merchant Bank of Africa 
Ltd.  He held the position of General Manager of Zenith International Bank Ltd from1990-
1998.  He grew to the position of Executive Director of Liberty Merchant Bank Plc from 1998-
2000.  He worked with African Express Bank Plc from 2000-2003 as the Managing 
Director/CEO.  Currently, he is the Managing Director/CEO of Leadership Paradigm 
Consultants Ltd.   He was appointed a Director of Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank in 
September, 2015 to help in the realization of the strategic vision of the Bank.

DR. BASIL A. N. ONUGU
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Engr. (Mrs.) M.R.O. Abba attended: Township School 1 Ogrute, Enugu-Ezike 
Enugu State where she obtained her First School Leaving Certificate in the 
year 1983.  She got her Junior School Examination Certificate from Iheaka 
Girls' Secondary School in the year 1986.  In the year 1989, she got her West 
African School Certificate from Special Science School Nsukka. Engr. (Mrs.) 
Abba went further to attend University of Port-Harcourt, River State and 
obtained Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical/Electronics Engineering in the 

year 1998.She furthered her education at Enugu State University of Science and Technology, 
Enugu State where she obtained Master of Engineering in Electrical/Electronics Engineering 
and Post Graduate Diploma in Psychology in the years 2011 and 2015 respectively.

Engr. (Mrs.) Abba is a member of professional bodies such as: Nigeria Society of Engineers 
(NSE), Association of Professional Women Engineers of Nigeria (APWEN), Council for the 
Regulation of Engineering in Nigeria (COREN), Society of women Engineers (SWE) HQ in 
California, USA, Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineering (IEEE).

Engr. (Mrs.) Abba is an author and has made publications in many books.  She is equally 
involved in many community development services as Executive Member and Matron.  She 
attended many conferences and learned society activities.
Being a noble woman, Engr. (Mrs.) Abba was appointed into many positions.  She was a 
Protection, Control and Metering Engineer; Power Holding Company of Nigeria from 2005 to 
2014.  She went further to occupy the position of Manager, Outage Management; Enugu 
Electricity Distribution Company from 2014 to 2015. She was made Lecturer 11 at Enugu State 
University of Science and Technology in the year 2015.She occupied the position of Mentor at 
the Society of Women Engineers; Collegiate Leadership Institute (CLI) at WE15 and 
Commissioner, Enugu State Independent Electoral Commission from 2017 till date.  Engr. 
(Mrs.) Abba is occupying the position of Director at Vce-Tek Ltd, Aba Owerri Road Aba, Abia 
State from 1998 till date.  On December 13, 2017, she was appointed a Director in Kenechukwu 
Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc to work with other Directors in the realization of the strategic 
vision of the Bank.

ENGR. (MRS.) M.R.O. ABBA

Very Rev. Msgr. Emma Ugwu is a Priest of the Catholic Church.  He 
attended the Bigard Memorial Seminary, Enugu and Paris, London 
University of Salzbury, Austria.  He obtained the following certificates from 
the universities, BA philosophy; BD theology and STD (moral theology). 
He has served in many Parishes in the Diocese of Nsukka and has served as 
Diocesan Chancellor for Finance. He speaks fluently Igbo, English and 
German.  He is currently an Executive Director at Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc

VERY REV. MONSIGNOR CHUKA EMMA UGWU
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M.A. Obayi is a solicitor and Advocate of the Supreme High Court of Nigeria. 
He attended the University of Nigeria Enugu Campus. He was called to the bar 
at Nigeria Law School, Lagos in 1993.Barr. Obayi is active in the activities of 
the NBA, Community services and the growth and development of the 
Catholic Church. He has four Publications to his credit and a member of the 
Knight of the order of St. Mulumba.    

OBAYI MATHEW ANENECHUKWU, ESQ.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
Year ended 31st December, 2018 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS    

 2018 2017 Increase / (Decrease) 

                              N N N            % 

Gross earnings 352,004,606 313,274,825 38,729,781 12 

Interest expenses (31,197,529) (20,100,695) (11,096,834) 55 

Profit before tax expense 96,365,981 101,478,731 (5,112,751) (5) 

Tax expense (10,826,263) (12,610,162) 1,783,899 (14) 

Deferred taxation ( 55,904) ( 3,046,486) 2,990,582 (98) 

Profit after tax expense 85,483,814 81,748,308 3,735,506 5 

Transferred to statutory reserve (21,370,953) (20,437,077) (933,876) 5 

Transfer to retained earning 64,112,860 61,311,231 2,801,629 5 

Statement of Financial Position 

Total assets 1,846,651,580 1,478,804,853 367,846,727 25 

Net assets 374,015,996 338,429,624 35,586,372 11 

Share capital 99,794,885 99,794,885 - - 

Shareholders’ fund 374,015,996 338,429,624 35,586,372 11 

No. of shares in issue (units) 99,794,885 99,794,885 - - 

Per Share Data: 

Earnings per share (kobo) - actual 86  82  4  4 

Net assets per share (kobo) 375  339  36 11 

Total assets per share (kobo) 1,850 1,482  369 25 
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Gross earnings� � � � � � � 352,004,606

4. Dividend: - The Board of Directors did not propose any dividend for the year.

sta) Directors: - The interests of the Bank as at 31  December, 2018 are shown in the 
Corporate Information on page 4.

6. Directors' and Their Interests: - 

b) Directors Interests: - The interest of the Directors in the issued share capital of the 
stBank as recorded in the Register of Shareholders as at 31  December 2018, are as 

follows:

5. Principal Activities: - The Bank is engaged in accepting from persons various types of 
deposits and providing its customers with ancillary banking services other than foreign 
exchange transactions. 

The profit for the year after tax expenses was� �   85,483,814

stThe Directors submit their report together with the financial statement for the year ended 31  
December, 2018.

2. Legal Form: - The Bank was incorporated in Nigeria as a Private Limited Liability 
thCompany on the 25  day of May, 2007, under the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP 

st(C20) LFN, 2004, with the registration number RC692871.  On 21  June, 2007, the Central 
Bank of Nigeria issued the Bank an Operational License Number 000017 to operate as a Unit 

stMicrofinance Bank.  The Bank commenced operations with effect from 1  August, 2007 as 
Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Limited.  In December 2012, the Bank obtained the 
Central Bank of Nigeria's approval to be upgraded to a State Microfinance Bank having met 
the minimum regulatory requirement.  The Bank was re-incorporated as a Public Limited 

thCompany (PLC) in Nigeria on 11  October, 2017 under the Companies and Allied Matters 
Act, 1990.

3. Results:  
N

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (year ended 31st december, 2018)

1. General: - The Directors are delighted to present to the Shareholders of the Bank, the Report 
stand Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31  December, 2018.
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These responsibilities include ensuring that:- 

· applicable accounting standards are followed.
· proper accounting records are maintained.

· adequate internal control procedures are instituted to safeguard assets, prevent and 
detect fraud, and other irregularities.

7. Directors Responsibilities: - In accordance with the provisions of Sections 334 and 335 of 
the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP (C20) LFN, 2004, and Sections 24 and 28 of the 
Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act 1991, as amended, the Directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Bank as at the balance sheet date and of the profit and loss and cash flow for the 
year ended on that date. 

· suitable accounting policies are adopted and consistently applied; 
· the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, unless it is 

inappropriate to presume that the Bank will continue in business; and
· judgments and estimates made in preparing the accounts are reasonable and prudent.
       

8. Analysis of Shareholding:
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5.  Independent Auditors: - The Auditors, Messrs Alatta Nzewi Oyeka & Co. (Charted 
Accountants) have expressed their willingness to continue office as Auditors to the Bank in 
accordance with section 357 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP (20) LFN 
2004. 

3. Fixed Assets: - Movements in property plant and equipment are shown on note 19 on page 
36 of the financial statements.  In the opinion of the directors, the market value of the Bank's 
properties is not less than the value shown in the financial statements.

1. Donation: - The Bank did not make any donation during the year.

4.  Employment and Employees:

b) Health Safety and Welfare: - In order to ensure the health and safety of all employees, 
health and safety regulations are in force in all the Bank's offices and installations.  The 
Bank provides safety equipment at all its premises and provides training facilities for 
its staff.  The Bank also provides subsidy to all levels of employees of medical, 
transportation, housing, etc.

       Nigeria

c) Training and Development: - The Bank is committed to keeping employees fully 
informed as much as possible regarding its performance and progress through regular 
briefings and meetings.  Their views are sought wherever practicable on matters which 
particularly affect them as employees.  The Bank believes that the professional and 
technical expertise of its managers and staff constitute a major asset; and investment in 
developing such skills continues to receive constant attention.

2. Charitable Gifts: - No charitable gift was given by the Bank during the year.

a) Employment of Disabled Persons: - It is the policy of the Bank that there should be no 
discrimination in considering applications for employment including those for 

stdisabled persons.  As at 31  December, 2018, there was one disabled person in the 
employment of the Bank.

By Order of the Board
   

      Secretary

       Enugu� � � � � � � Date:  October 09, 2019

      RFC/2016/MBA/00000014657
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Chief N.I. Eya

Chairman, Audit Committee

Members of the Committee

Prof. L.O. Ocho

Mr. E. A. Odo

Prof. L.O. Ocho

In compliance with Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP (C20) LFN, 
st2004, we have reviewed the Audit Report for the year ended, 31  December, 2018.   In our 

opinion: 

1. The scope and planning of the audit were adequate;

4. The External Auditors' management report received satisfactory response from 
management.

3. The internal control was being constantly and effectively monitored; and

REPORT OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KENECHUKWU MICROFINANCE BANK NIG. PLC

2. The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank conforms with statutory requirements and 
agreed ethical practices;
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF KENECHUKWU MICROFINANCE BANK NIGERIA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis for Opinion: - We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
Independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nigeria and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information: - The Directors are for other The other responsible the information. 
information comprises the Directors' Report and Audit Comm ee s Report as by itt ' required 
Companies and Al ed Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 obtained prior the date of li , Matters which we to 
this the made that report and integrated report which is expected to be available to us after date. , 
The other does not statements and our auditor s report thereon  information include the financial ' .

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2018 and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the 
Federation of Nigeria, 2004, the Financial Reporting Council Of Nigeria Act, 2011, the Banks 
and Other Financial Institutions Act, 1991 and relevant Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) 
Guidelines and Circulars. 

Opinion: - We have audited the financial statements of Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank 
Nigeria Plc ('the Bank") which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 
2018, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, statement of value added, three-
year financial summary and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information as set out on pages 10 to 46. 

Alatta Nzewi Oyeka & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Off Bode Thomas Street, Surulere, Lagos

www.alattanzewioyeka.com

Tel: 2713326, 2122501

LAGOS OFFICE
1, Oyediran Street

P.O.Box 5555, Marina, Lagos.

info@alattanzewiloyeka.com

Port Harcourt.

Silver Levene LLP
In affiliation with

old GRA, P.O.Box 256

www.alattanzewioyeka.com

PORT HARCOURT OFFICE

1A, Isaac Boro Park Road,

 
SL

 

http://www.alattanzewioyeka.com
mailto:info@alattanzewiloyeka.com
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Based on the have performed on the other nformation we obtained prior to the date work we that i
of this auditors report if we conclude there a material of th s other , that is misstatement i
information, we are requ ed to r ort hat fact. We have nothing to report in thi regardir ep t s .

Auditor's responsibilities For the Audit of the Financial Statements: - Our objectives are to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists.   Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion  thereon.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements: - The Directors are responsible 
for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, the 
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011 Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act, 
1991 and relevant Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Guidelines and Circulars, and for such 
internal control as the Directors' determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate 
the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

I , i iln connection our audit of the statements our respons b ity is to read the other with financial 
information and do ng so consider whether the other information is materially , i , in inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our obtained n aud t or otherwise appears to be knowledge the i i
materially misstated  .

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than from one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.
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For: Alatta Nzewi Oyeka & Co.
Onwurah Ibe FCA FRC/2013/ICAN/00000001788

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate to the circumstance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the Bank's internal control.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity to 
express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the Bank's audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

ii. The Bank has kept proper books of account so far as appears from our examination of , 
those books;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

i. We have obtained all the and explanations which to the best of our information 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

Contravention: - No contravention of the banking laws and the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) 
stcirculars came to our knowledge in respect of the year ended 31  December, 2018.

Report on other legal requirements: - In accordance with the Sixth Schedule of Companies and 
Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 we expressly state that:, , 

Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria
October 10, 2019

iii. The Bank s financial position and statement of profit or loss account and other ' its 
comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account and returns, .

Yours faithfully,
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 Note  2018  2017  

   N  N  
Interest income 5  299,067,064  258,967,623  
       
       
Interest expenses 6  ( 31,197,529)  ( 20,100,695)  
       
       
Net interest income   267,869,535  238,866,928  
       
       
Impairment charge for credit losses 6.1  463,458  (3,109,404)  
       
Net interest income after impairment charge for 
credit losses 

  268,332,993  235,757,524  

       
Net fee and commission 7  36,900,185  29,779,154  
       
Other operating income 8  16,037,357  24,528,048  
       
Net operating income   321,270,535  290,064,726  
       
       
Operating Expenses:       

- General overhead expenses 9  ( 215,069,607)  ( 182,353,957)  

- Depreciation 9.1  (9,834,947)  (6,232,037)  

       
       
Profit before taxation 10  96,365,981  101,478,732  
       
Tax expenses 11.1  (10,882,167)  (19,730,423)  
       
Profit for the year after tax expenses   85,483,814  81,748,308  
       
       
Other comprehensive income   -  -  

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable;       

Owners of equity   85,483,814  81,748,308  

       
       
       
Earnings attribute to owners       
Basic earnings per share (kobo)   63  82  

 

STATEMENT OF THE PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Of  Year ended 31st December, 2018 

The accounting policies on page 14 to 31 and notes on pages 34 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statement.
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The Financial Statements on pages 9 to 44 were approved by the Board of Directors on October 9, 2019 and 
signed on its behalf by:

Chairman    Managing Director   Chief Finance Officer
Dr. Steve Anago Okolo               Mr. Chris O. Ezema       Mrs. Ajibo Rose C.

FRC/2016/    FRC/2016/CI BN/00000014663  FRC/2016/CIBN/00000014658

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
Year ended 31st December, 2018 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 

Year ended 31st December, 2018  

The accounting policies on page 14 to 31 and notes on pages 34 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statement.



32

 Share 
Capital 

 
Share 

Premium 
 

Statutory 
Reserve 

 
Regulatory 

Risk
 

Reserve
 

Retained 
Earnings

 
Total Equity 

 

(N)
 

(N)
 

(N)
 

(N)
 

(N)
 

(N)
 

       

Balance at 1 Jan. 2018

 

99,794,885

  

24,220,642

 

109,884,048

 

7,491,596

 

7,038,453

 

338,429,624

 

Profit for the year

 

-

  

-

  

-

  

-

  

85,483,814

 

85,483,814

 

Total comprehensive income

 

-

  

-

  

-

  

-

  

85,483,814

 

85,483,814

 
       

Transactions with owners

       

Transfer to dividend payable

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

( 49,897,442)

 

( 49,897,442)

 

Issue of new shares

 

-

 

-

 

-

  

-

  

-

 

-

 

Transfers between reserves

 

-

 

-

 

21,370,953

 

-

 

(21,370,953)

 

-

 

Transfer to regulatory risk reserve

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

3,784,145

 

(3,784,145)

 

-

 

Total transactions with owners

 

-

 

-

 

21,370,953

 

3,784,145

 

( 75,052,540)

 

( 49,897,442)

 

       

Balance at 31 Dec, 2018

 

99,794,885

  

24,220,642

 

131,255,001

 

11,275,741

 

107,469,726

 

374,015996

 
       

Balance at 1 Jan, 2017

 

99,519,885

 

23,945,642

 

89,446,971

 

1,687,438

 

86,370,328

 

300,970,264

 

Profit for the year

 

-

  

-

  

-

  

-

  

81,748,308

 

81,748,308

 

Total comprehensive income

 

-

  

-

  

-

  

-

  

81,748,308

 

81,748,308

 

       

Transactions with owners

       

Dividend paid

 

-

  

-

  

-

 

-

  

(44,838,948)

 

(44,838,948)

 

Transfers between reserves

 

-

 

-

 

20,437,077

  

-

  

(20,437,077)

  

-

 

Transfer to regulatory risk reserve

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

5,804,158

 

(5,804,158)

 

-

 

Issue of new shares

 

275,000

 

275,000

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

550,000

 

Total transactions with owners

 

275,000

 

275,000

 

20,437,077

 

5,804,158

 

(71,080,183)

 

(44,288,948)

 
       

Balance at 31 Dec, 2017

 

99,794,885

 

24,220,642

 

109,884,048

 

7,491,596

 

97,038,453

 

338,429,624

 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
 

Year ended 31st December, 2018  

The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) requires all Microfinance banks to make an annual 
appropriation to a statutory reserve. This transfer is to comply with Section 8.1.7 of the revised 
regulatory and supervisory guidelines for Microfinance Banks in Nigeria.

The CBN requires that the excess of the prudential guidelines-based provision over the 
provision determined in line with IAS 39 must be credited to a statutory credit reserve. In the 
subsequent periods the excess of the IAS 39-based provision over the prudential guidelines-
based provision shall be transferred from the statutory credit reserve to retain earnings, to the 
extent that the reserve shall not become negative.

The accounting policies on page 14 to 31 and notes on pages 34 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statement.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

Year ended 31st December, 2018 
 

     

  2018  2017 

  N  N 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities     
Profit before income tax  96,365,981  101,478,732 
Adjustment for:     
Depreciation  9,834,947  6,232,037 
Previous year's underprovision for tax  -  4,073,775 
Impairment charge on credit losses  (463,458)  3,109,404 
Transferred to dividend payable  (49,897,442)  (44,838,948) 
Net cash from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities 55,840,028  70,055,000 
     
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:     
(Increase) in loans and advances  (108,057,169)  (66,839,096) 
(Increase) in due from directors  (2,925,000)  (744,444) 
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments  (915,597)  334,189 
(Increase) in other assets  (10,575,896)  1,917,143 
Increase in current deposits and other accounts  240,303,618  169,159,748 
Increase in dividend payable  24,283,017  28,127,893 
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities  69,401,715  (393,119) 
Net cashflow from operating activities before tax  267,354,716  201,617,314 
Tax paid  (12,610,162)  (19,200,470) 

Net cashflow from operating activities after tax  254,744,554  182,416,844 
     
     
Cash from Investing Activities:     
Purchase of fixed assets  (10,283,125)  (12,754,175) 
Purchase of intangible assets  -  - 
Net cash flow from investing activities  (10,283,125)  (12,754,175) 
     
     
Cash flows from Financing Activities:     
Share capital  -  275,000  
Share premium  -  275,000  
Dividends paid  (8,903,370)  ( 11,788,332) 

Net cash flow from financing activities  8,903,370  ( 11,788,332) 
     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  235,558,059  158,424,337 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  592,383,479  433,959,142 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  827,941,538  592,383,479 

     
     
     
Cash and cash equivalents represented by:     
Cash balance  14,690,830  10,322,880 
Balances with other banks  463,250,708  382,060,599 
Held-to-maturity financial instrument (Treasury bill)  350,000,000  200,000,000  
  827,941,538  592,383,479 
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2 Adoption of New and Revised Standards
These financial statements are presented in Nigeria Naira, which is the Bank's functional currency.

1.1 Reporting Entity
Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nigeria Plc (formerly Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nigeria 
Limited) was incorporated in Nigeria as a Public Limited Liability Company on the 21st day of 
September, 2017 with the registration number RC 692871 and CBN license number 000017 on 21st 
June, 2007 to operate as a unit Microfinance Bank. Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank’s registered 
office address is at Bishop Shanahan Hospital Annex, 46, Enugu Road. Nsukka, Enugu State, 
Nigeria. The Bank commenced banking operations on 1st of August, 2007. In December 2012, the 
Bank Obtained the Central Bank of Nigeria's approval to be upgraded to a State Microfinance Bank 
having met the minimum capital requirement. The Bank was re-incorporated as a Public Limited 
Company (PLC) in Nigeria on 11th October, 2017 under the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 
1990.

These financial statements are prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial and 
equity instruments that are measured at fair value. The accompanying financial statements is in 
Nigerian Naira, the functional currency of the Bank, and have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (FRCN) and as 
applicable, the Companies Allied Matters Act (CAMA), Cap C20, LFN 2004.

Year ended 31st December, 2018

1.3 Statement of Compliance

1.4 Going Concern

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.2 Basis of Preparation

The Bank’s principal activity is the provision of banking and other financial services to individual 
customers and small business owners other than foreign exchange transactions.

The financial statements of Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nigeria Plc (“the Bank”) have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements were authorized for 
issue by the Board of Directors on April 10, 2019.

1 General Information

There is no event that has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Bank will not 
continue to remain in business for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial 
statements.

1.5 Functional and Presentation Currency

2.1 Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective
The following contains effective dates of new and revised International Financial Reporting 
Standards and Interpretation which have not been early adopted by the Bank and that might affect 
future reporting periods.

* IFRS 16 Leases (effective 1 January, 2019)

Those which may be relevant to the Bank are set out below:

* IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January,   
2018)

* IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective on or after 1 January, 2018)
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All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instrument, Recognition and 
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are 
held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual 
cash flow that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at 
amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting period. All other debt investments and equity investments are 
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting period. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may 
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not 
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognized in profit or 
loss.

2.1.1.1 Key Requirements of IFRS 9

With regards to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liabilities, that is attributable to changes in the 
credit risk of that liability, is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of 
changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting 
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair 
value of the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss. IFRS 9 
introduces new requirement for classifying and measuring financial assets. The IASB postponed the mandatory 
application of IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application still permitted.

The directors do not anticipate that application of IFRS 9 will have material impact on the Bank's reported results 
and position.

IFRS 9 introduces new requirement for classifying and measuring financial assets. The IASB postponed the 
mandatory application of IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application 
still permitted.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

2.1.2 IAS 32 (Amendment) Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The amendment seeks to clarify that the right to set-off financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of 
financial position must be available today that is, it is not contingent on a future event. It also must be legally 
enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of business, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or 
bankruptcy. This amendment is effective on or after 1 January 2014 with early application permitted.

2.2 Early Adoption of Standards and Interpretations

2.1.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Year ended 31st December, 2018

3.2.1 Recognition and Measurement
All property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

3.1 Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

The significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented, unless 
otherwise indicated.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated and recorded in Naira at the actual exchange rates 
as of the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the 
reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Foreign 
currency differences arising on re-translation are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary 
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Bank has not early-adopted any standards or interpretations during the current year.
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Leasehold Land    Over the Leasehold Period

3.2.3 Depreciation

Building     5%

Every item of property, plant and equipment, is stated in the statement of financial position at deemed cost at the date 
of transition to IFRS less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes 
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Property, plant and equipment under 
construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. The cost of construction recognized includes the cost of 
materials, labour and any other costs directly attributable to making the asset available for use.

Year ended 31st December, 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the asset's carrying 
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statements of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income for the financial period in which they are incurred.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of the 
equipment.

3.2.2 Subsequent Costs

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted 
for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an 
item of property, plant and equipment which reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful 
lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Bank will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term in which case 
the assets are depreciated over the useful life.

The estimated useful lives for the assets are as follows:

Plant and machinery    15%
Motor vehicles     20%

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount 
of the item of property, plant and equipment and are recognized net within other income in profit or loss

Office equipment    10%
Furniture and fittings    10%
Computer equipment    10%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if 
appropriate. The attributable cost of each asset is transferred to the relevant asset category immediately the asset is 
available for use and depreciated accordingly.

Where an indication of impairment exists, an asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.
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Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognized in the Bank's statement of financial 
position. Significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor. 
Payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) 
are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

* the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible assets during development.

* the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to 
use or sell the intangible asset.

* how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

3.4 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, within the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses.

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally 
generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 
recognized when all of the following have been demonstrated:

3.4.2 Internal Generated Intangible Assets-Research and Development Expenditure

3.4.1 Intangible Assets Acquired Separately

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset that has no physical substance. An intangible asset is 
recognized when it is identifiable; the Bank has control over the asset; it is probable that economic benefits will 
flow to the Bank; the cost of the assets can be measured reliably.

* the ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

* the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or for sale.
* the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd
Year ended 31st December, 2018

Under IAS 16, an entity has a policy choice for the measurement of property, plant and equipment after initial 
recognition. An entity may choose either the Cost model or Revaluation model for the entire classes of property, 
plant and equipment.

3.2.4 Measurement Subsequent to Initial Recognition

The Bank has elected to use cost model to measure all classes of property, plant and equipment after initial 
recognition.

3.2.5 De-Recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in 
the year the asset is de-recognized.

3.3 Leased Assets
Leases in terms of which the Bank assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair 
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is 
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
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Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of a new or substantially improved processes. 
Development expenditure is capitalized only if development cost can be measured reliably the process is 
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the Bank intends to and has 
sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditure capitalized includes the 
cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended 
use.

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge 
and understanding, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

3.4.5 De-Recognition of Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognized.

3.5.1 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets Excluding Goodwill

Capitalized development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses.

3.5 Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine, whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of those assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which these assets belongs. Where a 
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified corporate assets are also allocated to individual 
cash generating units or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a 
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Year ended 31st December, 2018

The amount initially recognized for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from 
the date when the intangible assets first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally generated 
intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditures is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it is 
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis the intangible assets that are acquired separately.

3.4.4 Development

3.4.3 Research

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and the value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted for their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash-flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognized in profit or loss.
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In respect of other assets, (excluding Goodwill for which impairment loss is not recognized), impairment losses 
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no 
longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate is not recognized separately, and 
therefore is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is 
tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate may be 
impaired.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment for financial assets at both a specific asset and collective level. All 
individually significant financial assets are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant financial 
assets found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been 
incurred but not yet identified. Financial assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for 
impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk characteristics. In assessing collective impairment 
the Bank uses historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, 
adjusted for management's judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual 
losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against 
receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. 
When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through profit or loss.

 After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices, 
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this 
information is not available, the Bank uses alternative valuation methods, such as recent prices on less active 
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Valuations are performed as at the financial position 

Investment properties are properties held for long-term capital appreciation or rental yields or both, and they are 
not occupied by the Bank. Investment properties comprise mainly of commercial projects constructed and 
acquired with the aim of leasing out to tenants. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including 
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

3.6 Investment Properties

3.5.2 Financial Assets (Including Receivables)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect 
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
* Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest.
* Breach of loan covenants or conditions.
* Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings.
* Deterioration of borrower's competitive position.
* Deterioration in the value of collateral.
* Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor.
* The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset as a result of financial difficulties.

* For an investment in an equity security, a significant of prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is 
objective evidence of impairment.

* The Bank, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the 
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider.

Year ended 31st December, 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd
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3.10.1 Share Capital

date by professional valuers who hold recognized and relevant professional qualifications and have recent 
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. These valuations form the basis 
for the carrying amounts in the financial statements. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing 
use as investment property or for which the market has become less active continues to be measured at fair 
value. 

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and 
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current market conditions. The fair value 
also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any 
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is 
treated in the same way as a revaluation under IAS 16. Any resulting increase in the carrying amount of the 
property is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss, with any 
remaining increase recognized in other comprehensive income and increase directly to equity in revaluation 
surplus within equity.

Where an investment property undergoes a change in use, evidenced by commencement of development 
with a view to sale, the property is transferred to inventories. A property's deemed cost for subsequent 
accounting as inventories is its fair value at the date of change in use.

Year ended 31st December, 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the property is initially charged in other comprehensive 
income against any previously recognized revaluation surplus, with any remaining decrease charged to 
profit or loss.

The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance 
the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this future expenditure other than those a 
rational market participant would take into account when determining the value of the property. Changes in 
fair values are recognized in profit or loss. Investment properties are derecognized when they have been 
disposed.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be 
reliably measured. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an 
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. Its 
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting purposes.

3.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash balances with banks and short term deposits with 
maturity of less than 3 months from the date of acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and form an integral part of the Bank's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash 
equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

3.10 Share Capital and Reserves

35Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a 
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

The Bank has only one class of shares, ordinary shares and it is classified as equity. When new shares are 
issued, they are recorded in share capital at their par value. The excess of the issue price over the par value is 
recorded in the share premium reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Statutory Reserve

* 12.5% after tax if the statutory reserve is greater than the paid-up share capital.

3.10.3 Statutory Risk Reserve

* 25% of profit after tax if the reserve is 50% or more; and

The Bank determines its loan loss provisions based on the requirements of IFRS. The difference between the loan 
loss provision as determined under IFRS and the provision as determined under Nigerian Prudential Guidelines 
(as prescribed by the CBN) is recorded in this reserve. This reserve is non-distributable.

3.10.2 Retained Earnings

Classification   Provision 
   requirement   Basis
Performing  1%   Interest/Principal not due 
Pass and Watch  5%   Interest/Principal overdue by 1 day but less than 31 days
Substandard  20%   Interest/Principal overdue by 31 days but less than 61 days
Doubtful  50%   Interest/Principal overdue by 61 days but less than 91 days
Lost   100%   Interest/Principal overdue by 91 days and above

Year ended 31st December, 2018

The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) requires all MFBs to make an annual appropriation to a statutory reserve. As 
stipulated in Section 18.17 of the revised regulatory and supervisory guidelines for MFBs in Nigeria.

Retained earnings comprise the undistributed profits from previous years, which have not been classified to other 
reserves noted below:

* An appropriation of 50% of profit after tax is made if the statutory reserve is less than the paid-up capital;

3.11 Financial Instruments

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), available 
for sale (AFS), loans and receivables and held to maturity investments as appropriate. The Bank determines the 
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, 
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

A more accelerated provision may be done using the subjective criteria. A 1% provision is taken on all risk assets 
that are not specifically provisioned.

Where the IFRS- computed impairment is greater and there is no credit balance in the SCR, no appropriation is 
made and the IFRS-computed amount is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Where there is a credit 
balance in the SCR, a transfer is made to the retained earnings to the extent of the difference between IFRS 
impairments and Prudential Guidelines provision figures.

Where the Prudential guidelines' provision for doubtful balances is greater, the difference is appropriated from 
retained earnings and included in a non-distributable reserve “Regulatory Risk Reserve”.

3.11.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

The results of the application of the prudential guidelines and the impairment determined for these assets under 
IAS 39 are compared. The IAS 39 determined impairment charge is always included in the statement of profit or 
loss in all cases.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired 
or have been transferred and the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial 
liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated.



42

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

3.11.2 Subsequent Measurement

This category comprises two sub-categories: financial assets classified as held for trading, and financial assets 
designated by the Bank as FVTPL upon initial recognition. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is 
acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a 
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Financial assets held for trading consist of debt instruments and equity 
instruments, as well as financial assets with embedded derivatives. Financial instruments included in this 
category are recognized initially at fair value; transaction costs are taken directly to income statement. The 
instrument are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Bank has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognizing.

Year ended 31st December, 2018

a. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the statement of financial position as 
'financial assets designated at fair value'. Fair value changes relating to financial assets designated at FVTPL are 
recognized in the income statement.

b. Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non- derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate except for short term 
receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The assets in this category include trade and other 
receivables, contract receivables, and retentions, cash and cash equivalents.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held to 
maturity when the Bank has the intention and ability to hold until maturity. After initial measurement, held to 
maturity financial assets are measured at amortized cost, using the Effective Interest Rate, less impairment. The 
Effective Interest Rate amortization is included in 'investment income' in the income statement. Gains and losses 
are recognized in the income statement when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the 
amortization process.

Available-for-sale investments are financial assets that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, 
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices or 
that are not classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity investments or financial assets at FVTPL. AFS 
financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, which is the cash consideration including any transaction 
costs, and measured subsequently at fair value with gain and losses being recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial 
asset is derecognized. If an AFS financial asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognized in the statement of comprehensive income is recognized in the income statement. 
However, interest is calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign currency gains and losses on 
monetary assets classified as AFS are recognized in the income statement. Dividends on AFS equity instruments 
are recognized in the income statement in 'Dividend income' when the Bank's right to receive payment is 
established.

c. Held to Maturity Financial Assets

The Bank's financial assets on the purpose for which the equivalents, due from related parties, prepayments and 
loans and advances.

d. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (AFS)

3.12 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other liabilities (amortized cost).
37Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is   

designated as at FVTPL.  A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
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3.14.1 Provisions

Year ended 31st December, 2018

The Bank operates a gratuity scheme whereby a staff who has served for ten (10) years and above is paid one (1) 
year gross salary as a special severance benefit.

3.13.4 Defined Benefit Plan

3.14 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

In accordance with IAS 37 provisions are recognized if, as a result of past event, the Bank has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost and charged to profit or loss.

3.14.2 Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Bank, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognized as liabilities in the statement of financial position. If 
the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible obligation is neither a provision nor a contingent 
liability and no disclosure is made.

3.14.5 Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are appropriated from retained earnings and recognized as liability in the period in 
which they are declared until they are paid. Dividends that are proposed but not yet declared are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements.

Dividends which remained unclaimed for a period exceeding twelve (12) years from the date of declaration and 
which are no longer actionable by shareholders in accordance with Section 385 of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act, CAP C20, LFN,2004 are written back to retained earnings.

3.15 Earnings per Share
The Bank presents basic earnings per share for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share are calculated by 
dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the unit of shares outstanding during the 
year.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced with 
estimated discounts and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognized when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. However when an uncertainty arises about the 
collectability of an amount already included in revenue, the uncollectible amount or the amount in respect of 
which recovery has ceased to be probable is recognized as an expense.

3.16 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured as the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other 
sales-related taxes.
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Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
statutorily enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial assets), gains 
on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, Finance income is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest 
method.

3.17 Finance Income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or 
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income.

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable 
or deductible.

Deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income except to the extent 
that it relates to a transaction that is recognized directly in equity. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the amount will be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized.

3.18 Income Tax

3.18.1 Current Tax

3.18.2 Deferred Tax

Year ended 31st December, 2018

3.16.1 Interest Income and Expense

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Once a financial asset or group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairement loss, 
interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of 
measuring the impairment loss.

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognized within 'interest income' 
and 'interest expense' in the statement of profit or loss using effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial 
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or 
financial liability. When calculating the effective rate, Kenechukwu MFB estimates cash flows considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument ( for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future 
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral 
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all premiums or discounts. Where the estimated cash flows 
on financial assets are subsequently revised, other impairment losses, the carrying amount of the financial assets is 
adjusted to reflect actual and revised estimated cash flows.

3.16.2 Dividend Income
Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders' rights to receive payment have been 
established, and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably.

3.16.3 Rendering of Services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognized in the period the services are rendered. Revenue is recognized 
only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the bank.

3.16.4 Fees and Commission Income
Unless included in the effective interest calculation, fees and commissions are recognized on an accruals basis as 
the service is provided. Fees and commissions are integral to effective interest arising from loan application fees, 
commission turnover and cash handling charges.
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3.12.2 De-Recognition of Financial Liabilities

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 
service is provided.

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.13.3 Short-Term Employee Benefits

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd
Year ended 31st December, 2018

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 
recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the 
financial liability and is included in the other gains and losses line item.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Bank becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Bank derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual 
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when the Bank's obligations are discharged, cancelled, 
or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the 
consideration paid, and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

3.13 Employee Benefits
3.13.1 Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) under which the Bank pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity. The Bank has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions 
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefit relating to employee service in the 
current and prior periods. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an 
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the period during which services are rendered by employees.

3.13.2 Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Bank is committed demonstrably, without realistic 
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement 
date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Bank has made an offer of 
voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be 
estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting period then they are discounted 
to their present value.

It has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term or on initial recognition; it is part of 
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit taking; or it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, 
and only when, the Bank has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.12.1 Other Financial Liabilities

The Bank operates a pension scheme for its staff. This is in line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 
2004. Staff contributions to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions while the Bank's contribution is 
charged to the profit or loss account. Employees contribute 8% each of their Basic salary, Transport & Housing 
Allowances to the Fund on a monthly basis. The Bank's contribution is 10% of each employee's Basic salary, 
Transport & Housing Allowances for non-management and management employees respectively.

38A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under end-of-year cash bonus if the Bank has a 
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The management believes that the consumption pattern on items of property, plant and equipment is such that the 
book value is spread equally over the useful life of the assets. The judgment exercised is based on past experience 
with similar asset, technological obsolescence and declining residual value.

Year ended 31st December, 2018

* the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is provided for using the liability method, which represents taxation at the current rate of corporate 
tax on all timing differences between the accounting values and their corresponding tax values. A deferred tax 
asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
the amount will be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, 
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to 
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to 
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

1.1.1 Income Taxes

In the application of the Bank's significant accounting policies, described in Note 3, the directors are required to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and the future period if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Bank is subject to various forms of taxes. Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for 
income and other related taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax 
determination is uncertain. The Bank recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of 
whether additional taxes will be due.

1.1.2 Review of the Useful Lives of Tangible Assets

* temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont’d

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not 
recognized for the following temporary differences:

* differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is 
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

1.1 Significant Judgments

For defined-benefit pension plans, the measurement of Kenechukwu MFB's benefit obligation and net periodic 
pension cost/(income) requires the use of certain assumptions, including, among others, estimates of discount 
rates and expected return on plan assets. Kenechukwu MFB has a policy of providing retirement benefit plans for 
employees that have served for a minimum of 10 years. Kenechukwu MFB was established on 1st August, 2007, 
hence there is no existing defined-benefit obligation.

1.1.3 Retirement Benefit Obligation
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Year ended 31st December, 2018

Kenechukwu MFB reviews its loan portfolios for impairment on an ongoing basis. Kenechukwu MFB first 

assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 

individually significant, and collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant together 

with significant assets assessed individually as not impaired. Impairment provisions are also recognized for 

losses not specifically identified but which, experience and observable data indicate are present in the 

portfolio at the date of assessment.

In accordance with IAS 39 guidance, Kenechukwu MFB classifies some non-derivative financial assets with 

fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires 

significant judgment. In making this judgment Kenechukwu MFB evaluates its intention and ability to hold 

such investments to maturity.

The Bank reviewed the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment assets on transition to IFRS 

on 1 January, 2014. Under IFRS, these shall be reviewed annually at each reporting date. Useful lives are 

estimated based on the engineers' report, as at each reporting date. Some of the factors considered include the 

current service potential of the assets, potential cost of repairs and maintenance.

Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit-risk Characteristics 

and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio, when scheduling its future class flows. 

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are 

reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

There is a degree of subjective judgment in such estimation which has a resultant impact on profit and total 

comprehensive income for the year.

1.2.3 Allowances for Credit Losses

1.2.1 Impairment Charges on Financial Assets

1.1.1 Held-To-Maturity Investments

The Bank periodically assesses its receivables for probability of credit losses. Management considers 

several factors including past credit record, current financial position and credibility of management, 

judgment is exercised in determining the allowances made for credit losses.

1.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

1.2.2 Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Furthermore all balances are reviewed for evidence of impairment and provided against once recovery is 

doubtful. These assessments are subjective and involve a significant element of judgment by management on 

the ultimate recoverability of amounts receivable.

Provisions are made for receivables that have been outstanding for 365days and above in respect of which 

there is no firm commitment to pay by the customer.
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Year ended 31st December, 2018

    2018  2017 
    N  N 
9.1 Impairment of Assets      
  Depreciation   9,834,947  6,232,037 
 Provision for risk assets losses   (463,458)  3,109,404 
    9,371,489  9,341,441 

10 Profit Before Tax Expenses      
 The profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:     
 ˉ Depreciation   9,834,947  6,232,037 
 ˉ Audit fee   630,000  630,000 
    10,464,947  6,862,037 
 And after crediting:      
 ˉ Other income   11,840,559  16,893,541 
       

11 Income Tax      
       
11.1 Income Tax Expense Recognized in Profit or Loss     
 Current tax:      
 Tax on profit from ordinary activities    8,678,849  10,442,533 
 Education tax   2,147,414  2,167,629 
 Under provision for tax in previous year   -  4,073,775 
    10,826,263  16,683,937 
       

 Deferred Tax:       
 Deferred tax expenses   55,904  3,046,486 
       
 Total income tax recognized in profit or loss   10,882,167  19,730,423 
       

11.2 Current Tax Liabi lities Recognized in Statement of Financial Position 
 Balance brought forward   12,610,162  15,126,695 
 Charge for the year   10,826,263  12,610,162 
 Under/over provision in the previous year   -  4,073,775 
 Payment during the year   (12,610,162)  ( 19,200,470) 

 Balance at the end of  the year   10,826,263  12,610,162 
       

12 Movement in Deferred Tax Payable Account       
 Balance brought forward   11,526,586  8,480,100 
 Charge for the year   55,904  3,046,486 
 Balance at the end of year   11,582,490  11,526,586 
       

13 Cash and Cash Equivalents      
 Cash in Hand   14,690,830  10,322,880 
 Balances with other banks (Note 13.i)   463,250,708  332,560,599 
 Placement in other banks (Note 13.ii)   -  49,500,000 
    477,941,538  392,383,479 
       

13.1 Due from other banks      
       
 Balances held with other banks      
       

 i)  Bank Balances      
   Access Bank Plc - IPSA Account   17,927,411  13,048,351 
  Union Bank of Nigeria Plc, Nsukka   100,421,779  676,626 
  Ecobank Nigeria Limited   3,907,030  2,010,780 
  First Bank of Nigeria Plc    32,812,241  8,398,522  
  Diamond Bank Plc    3,385,494  7,158,786 
  Keystone Bank Limited    17,130  18,546  
  United Bank for Africa Plc   72,974,556  97,793,204 
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     2018  2017  
     N  N  
  Guaranty Trust Bank    651,537  102,794,945  
  Fidelity bank plc   111,544,253  9,012,568  
  Zenith Bank Plc   119,609,277  91,648,271  
     463,250,708  332,560,599  

         
 i)  Placements with Other Banks       
  ¯ Ecobank Nig Ltd   -  50,000,000   
  Provision for bad debt risk assets (1%)   -  (500,000)  
     -  49,500,000   
         
  (i + ii)   463,250,708  382,060,599  

         
         
14 Loans and Advances to Customers   
 Civil servants   856,258,516  737,584,719  
 Shanahan – Public Servants   7,997,042  7,435,321  
 Microfinance SME/Group   53,040,736  57,251,194  
 Staff loans     41,936,416  39,547,453  

      959,232,710  841,818,687  
 Impairment (Note 14.1)    (32,739,986)  ( 33,203,444)  

 Net Loan     926,492,724  808,615,243  

         
         
14.1 Movement in Allowance for Loan Impairment      
         
14.1.1 Specific allowance for impairment       
 As at 1 January   659,091  508,265  
 Impairment loss (Charge/(write back) for the year   16,035,382  150,826  

 As at 31 December   16,694,473  659,091  

         
        
14.1.2 Collective allowance for impairment       
 As at 1 January   32,544,353  29,585,775  
 Impairment loss (Charge) for the year   (16,498,839)  2,958,578  

 As at 31 December   16,045,514  32,544,353  

         
 Total impairment    32,739,986  33,203,444  

         
       
14.2.1 Analysis of loans and advances by performance: -      
 Performing    908,633,309  791,658,703  
 Non Performing:       
 Principal    55,477,812  45,818,567  
 Interest in suspense   491,035  6,785,862  
     964,602,156  844,263,132  
         
        

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Year ended 31st December, 2018
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    2018  2017  
    N  N  
14.2.2 Provision for Risk Assets Losses:       
 a) Loan Loss Provision Principal Rate        
 This is computed as follows: Amount %        
   N         
 Performing  908,633,309 1    9,086,333  7,916,587  
 Non-Performing          
 Pass and watch  18,788,159 5    939,408  490,619  
 Substandard  2,705,996 20    541,199  644,864  
 Doubtful  2,051,811 50    1,025,905  1,138,900  
 Lost  32,422,881 100    32,422,881  37,289,932  
 Adjustment of duplicated amount   (491,035)  (6,785,862)  
   964,602,156    43,524,692  40,695,039  

 Interest in Suspense    491,035  6,785,862  
      44,015,727  47,480,901  
          

 b) The movements in the loan loss provision is as follows:      
  Balance at 1/1   47,480,901  39,346,745  
  Additional provision for the year    (3,956,209)  1,348,294  
  Interest In Suspense   491,035  6,785,862  
  Balance at 31/12   44,015,727  47,480,901  
         

15 Held -To-Maturity Financial Assets       
 Treasury bill   350,000,000  200,000,000  
         

16 Due From Directors       
 Performing   5,369,444  2,444,444  
 Non Performing   -  -  
     5,369,444  2,444,444  

17 Prepayments       
 Prepaid Rent   188,160  1,170,000  
 Prepaid Insurance   2,177,004  677,500  
 Prepaid Training Expenses   333,333  -  
 Other Prepayments   101,000  36,400  
    2,799,497  1,883,900  
        

18 Other Assets      
 Interest receivable   14,497,608  8,154,858  
 Stock of stationeries   3,790,721  2,204,473  
 Suspense account   3,646,868  999,970  
     21,935,197  11,359,301  
 Less: Specific Provision for suspense fraud account   -  - - 
     21,935,197  11,359,301  
         

19 Property, Plant and Equipment 
  Building Leasehold 

Land 
Plant & 

Machinery 
Motor 

Vehicles 
Computer 
Hardwares 

Office 
Equipment 

Furniture 
& 

Fittings 

Total 

Cost: N N N N N N N N 
At Jan 1, 2018 37,375,280 4,000,000  8,203,743  19,593,500  9,212,375 6,334,130 10,528,140 95,247,168 
Additions 1,853,875 -  515,000  630,000  3,796,000 2,527,200 961,050 10,283,125 

At December 31, 2018 39,229,155  4,000,000  8,718,743  20,223,500 13,008,375 8,861,330 11,489,190 105,530,293 
         

Depreciation:         
At Jan 1, 2018 14,816,394 1,668,925 4,120,780 8,940,361 2,631,261 2,019,920 2,426,640 36,624,281 
Charge for the year  2,053,683 210,322 1,265,387 3,834,113 961,118 587,869 922,455 9,834,947 

 At December 31, 2018 16,870,077 1,879,247 5,386,167 12,774,474 3,592,379 2,607,789 3,349,095 46,459,228 

          

 Carrying Amount:         

 December 31, 2018 22,359,078 2,120,753 3,332,576 7,449,026 9,415,996 6,253,541 8,140,095 59,071,065 

 December 31, 2017 22,558,886 2,331,075 4,082,963 10,653,139 6,581,114 4,314,210 8,101,500 58,622,887  
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19.1 Intangible Assets       
        

 Intangible Asset:   2018    
 Cost:   N    
 At Jan. 1, 2018   5,510,000    
 Acquired during the year   -    

 At Dec. 31, 2018   5,510,000    

        

        
 Amortization:       
 At Jan 1, 2018   2,943,544    
 Charge for the year   453,484    
 At Dec. 31, 2018   3,397,028    

        
 Carrying Amount:       
 At Dec. 31, 2018   2,112,972    

 At Dec. 31, 2017   2,566,456     

        
        
    2018   2017 
    N   N 
20 Available For Sale Financial Assets    929,143   929,143  
 Investments in Shares       
 Zenith Bank Plc (40,000 units) (Cost N1,556,000)       
        
21 Current, Deposits and Other Accounts       
 Fixed   186,935,622   98,828,825 
 Current   280,465,181   255,189,775 
 Savings   738,207,911   611,286,496 

    1,205,608,714   965,305,096 

        
 The maturity profile of the loans are as follows:       
 ¾ Under 1 Month   1,152,479,726   887,210,899 
 ¾ 1-3 Months   26,168,994   59,742,846 
 ¾ 3-6 Months   8,139,998   7,256,580 
 ¾ 6-12 Months   18,099,996   8,995,760 
 ¾ Over 12 Months   720,000   2,099,011 

    1,205,608,714   965,305,096 

        
22 Other Liabilities       
 Accrued audit fees   630,000   630,000  
 Deposit for shares   71,161,926   5,301,813 
 Other creditors   76,006,003   85,357,825 
 Interest payable   1,875,364   1,150,380 
 VAT payable    2,222,079   1,001,696 
 WHT payable   13.872,041   2,891,384 
 PAYE Payable    19,848   52,448 

    165,787,261   96,385,546 

        
23 Dividend Payable       
 Balance brought forward   54,547,839   26,419,946 
 Addition in the year   49,897,442   44,838,948  
 Payment in the year   (25,614,425)   ( 16,711,055) 

 Balance carried forward   78,830,856   54,547,839 

        

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Year ended 31st December, 2018
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    2018   2017 
    N   N 
24 Share Capital       
 Authorized:       
 200,000,000 ordinary shares of N1.00 each   200,000,000   200,000,000 

        
 Issued and fully paid       
 Balance brought forward   99,794,885   99,519,885 
 Additions during the year   -   275,000 
 Balance carried forward   99,794,885   99,794,885 

        
25 Share Premium       
 Balance brought forward   24,945,642   23,945,642  
 Addition in the year   -   275,000 
 Balance carried forward   24,945,642   24,945,642 

        
26 Statutory Reserve       
 Opening balance   24,220,642   89,446,971 
 Transfer from profit or loss account   21,370,953   20,437,077 
    131,255,001   109,884,048 

        
27 Statutory Risk Reserve       
 At 1 January   7,491,596   1,687,438 
 Movement in the year   3,784,145   5,804,158 
 At December   11,275,741   7,491,596 

        
  Prudential Guideline  IFRS    
 Provisions Allowance  Allowance   Difference 
 31-Dec-2017 40,695,040  33,203,444   7,491,596 
 31-Dec-2018 44,015,727  32,739,986   11,275,741 
        
    2018   2017 
    N   N 
28 Retained Earnings       
 Opening balance   97,038,453   86,370,328 
 Transfer between reserves   (21,370,953)   ( 20,437,077) 

 Transfer to dividend payment   (49,897,442)   ( 44,838,948) 

 Transfer from profit or loss account   85,483,814   81,748,308 

    111,253,872   102,842,611 
 Transfer to / from regulatory risk reserve   (3,784,145)   ( 5,804,158) 

 Closing balance   107,469,727   97,038,453 

        

 

 The Bank adhered to the provisions of the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act, 1991 and relevant Central Bank of  
Nigeria (CBN) Circular

 The Board of Directors, pursuant to the powers vested in it by the provisions of section 379 of the Companies and Allied                                         
Matters Act (CAMA) of Nigeria, Proposed a dividend of 50kobo per ordinary share of N1.00 to be paid to shareholders upon 
approval at the Annual General Meeting. The dividends are subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%.

29 Dividend

30 Compliance with Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act 1991 and Other Relevant Status:

 The Bank is organized into one main business segment.
31 Segmental Reporting:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Year ended 31st December, 2018
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   2018   2017 
   N’000   N’000 
Loans and advances issued during the year  1,146    2,000  

Loans and advances outstanding at 31/12   965    1,944  

       
Deposit from related parties       
Deposit received during the year   -   -  
Balance of deposit at 31/12   -   -  

       
Other Transactions with Related Parties      
Property lease agreement   -   - 
Outstanding guarantees by Directors   -   - 

       
Loans and Advances to Key Management Personnel      
Loans and advances issued during the year  8,800    9,800 
Loans and advances at 31/12   7,582    7,924 
       

 e Key Management Personnel Compensation
Key management has been determined to be the member of the Executive Committee (EXCO) of the Bank. The compensation 
paid to key management for employee services is shown. There were no sales/purchases of goods and services between 
Kenechukwu MFB and key management personnel during the periods.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd
Year ended 31st December, 2018

32 Fraud and Forgeries:
 The Bank recorded a fraud incident perpetrated by one of its staff during the year, which have been reported to the 

Central Bank of Nigeria. The total fund misappropriated as at 31st December, 2018 was N4,386,619. The matter 
have been reported to the law enforcement agents and is currently being investigated

Retail Banking:
Incorporated microfinance banking services, private customer current accounts, savings, deposit, investment savings 
products, custody and consumer loans.

 In order to enhance better presentation of the accounts, some prior year balances have been restated to conform 
with current year classifications. These reclassifications do not, however, have any effects on the net result of the 
previous year's accounts.

 As at 31st December, 2018, the Bank, in the ordinary course of business is involved in criminal cases against Idu  
Ugochukwu, Miss Ugwu Scholarstica Tochukwu and Ede Emmanuel. These cases are still on and yet to be 
determined or closed.

33 Prior Year Comparative Figures:

 Kenechukwu MFB limited has no parent and ultimate controlling entity. Its affairs are run by the Board of 
Directors who in aggregate own about 8% of the Bank's ordinary shares. Some of the Directors are representative 
of some shareholders who are groups under the minority.

 A number of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These  
include loans and deposits

34 Contingent Liabilities, Litigations and Claims:

36 Related Party Transactions: Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party

On the advice of counsel, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that no material losses are expected to arise, 
hence, no provision has been made in the financial statements.

35 Post Statement of Financial Position Events:
 There are no post Statement of Financial Position events which could have had a material effect on the state of 

affairs of the bank at 31st December, 2016 which have not been adequately provided for.

 a Loans and Advances to Related Parties
  Kenechukwu MFB granted various credit facilities to directors and their close family members. The rate      

and terms agreed are comparable to other facilities being held in the bank's portfolio or as Board may 
approve. Details of this are described below:
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       2018  2017 
       N’000  N’000 
  i. Short term benefits (salaries and other benefits)  109,777  86,185 
  ii. Post-employment benefits  -  - 
  iii. Termination benefits   -  - 

       109,777  86,185 

          
37 Directors and Employees:      
 Emoluments;     -    
 Fees     3,344,000  - 
           
 The number of Directors whose gross emoluments were within the following ranges are;  
 Range         
 2,000,000 – 5,000,000      7  7 
 5,000,000 – 10,000,000      -  - 
 10,000,000 – 15,000,000      -  - 
 15,000,000 – 20,000,000      -  - 
 Number of Directors without emolument   -  - 
          

 Employee         
 The average number of employees during the year      
 ˉ Management staff      17  15 
 ˉ Senior staff      76  40 
 ˉ Junior staff      63  50 
       156  105 
          
 The number of employees with emoluments excluding allowances with the following ranges were; 
          

 Range in N         
          

 Less than N300,000      95  48 
 300,001 - 400,000      26  25 
 400,001 - 500,000      11  12 
 500,001 - 600,000      7  6 
 600,001 - 700,000      7  7 
 700,001 - 800,000      3  - 
 800,001 - 900,000      1  1 
 900,001 -1,000,000      -  - 
 1,000,001 – 2,000,000      4  5 
 2,000,001 – 3,000,000      2  1 
 3,000,001 – 4,000,000      -  - 
 2,000,001 – 3,000,000      -  - 
       156  105 
          

 38 Financial Risk Management:
 Kenechukwu MFB defines risk as the possibility of losses or profits forgone, which may be caused by internal 

factors. Kenechukwu MFB's aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimize 
potential adverse effects on Kenechukwu MFB's financial performance. 

 The key elements of Kenechukwu MFB’s risk management philosophy are the following:

 Risk management is carried out by Kenechukwu MFB's finance department under policies approved by the Board 
of Directors. Kenechukwu MFB's finance department provides central oversight of risk management across 
Kenechukwu MFB to ensure that risks are mitigated. The risks arising from financial instruments to which 
Kenechukwu MFB is exposed are financial risks, which include: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk 
(discussed in subsequent sections)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Year ended 31st December, 2018
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4. Risk management shall be governed by well-defined policies which are clearly communicated across 
Kenechukwu MFB.

2. The Bank shall continue to adopt a holistic and integrated approach to risk management and bring all risks 
together under one or a limited number of oversight functions.

6. Risks are reported openly and fully to the appropriate levels once they are identified.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd

Kenechukwu Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc's financial instruments are categorized as stated below:

1. Kenechukwu MFB considers sound risk management to be the foundation of a long-lasting financial institution.

Year ended 31st December, 2018

3. Risk officers shall be empowered to perform their duties professionally and independently without undue 
interference.

5. The Bank's risk management governance structure shall be clearly defined.

38.1 Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities

 Credit risk is the risk that Kenechukwu MFB will not be able to recover funds and suffer losses because another party is  
unable or unwilling to meet contractual obligations to Kenechukwu MFB when due. The principal banking activities that 
create exposure to credit risk include lending, leasing and placement activities.

38.2.1 Management of Credit Risk

38.2 Credit Risk

        
  Financial Assets 
  Held-to-maturity  

N 
 Other financial assets 

N 

 December 31, 2018    
 Cash and cash equivalents -  14,690,830 
 Loans and advances to banks -  463,250,708 
 Loans and advances to customers -  926,492,724 
 Treasury bills 350,000,000  -  
 Other assets -  22,864,340 
  350,000,000  1,427,298,602 

     
   Financial Liabilities 
   Other financial  liabilities 
   N 

 Current, deposits and other  accounts   1,205,608,714 
 Other liabilities (excluding statutory deductions)   244,618,117 

    1,450,226,831 

     
  Financial Assets 
  Held-to-maturity  

N 
 Other financial assets 

N 
 December 31, 2016 -  10,322,880 
 Cash and cash equivalents -  382,060,599 
 Loans and advances to banks -  808,615,243 
 Loans and advances to customers 200,000,000  -  
 Treasury bills -  12,288,444 
 Other assets 200,000,000  1,213,287,166 
     

   Financial liabilities 
   Other financial liabilities 
   N 
 Current, deposits and other  accounts   965,305,096 
 Other liabilities (excluding statutory deductions)   150,933,385 
    1,116,238,481  
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 1. Lending/leasing
  a. Kenechukwu MFB grants credit to a customer (loan, advances, overdraft etc) or finance a lease
  b. There is an advance or a loan to an employee (staff loan, cash advances etc).
 2. Placements
 a. Kenechukwu MFB makes investments in money market placements in other financial institutions or       

engages in trading activities where the exchange of monetary value and transfer of ownership of

38.2.2 Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk Before Collateral Held or Other Credit Enhancements
 Kenechukwu MFB's maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2016    
respectively, is represented by the net carrying amounts of its financial assets in the statement of financial 
position.

38.3 Liquidity Risk
  Liquidity risk is the risk that Kenechukwu MFB cannot meet its maturing obligations when they become due,  

at reasonable cost and in a timely manner. Liquidity risk can materialize both through trading and non-trading 
positions. Liquidity risk management in Kenechukwu MFB is solely determined by management, which 
bears the overall responsibility for liquidity risk. The main objective of Kenechukwu MFB's liquidity risk 
framework is to maintain sufficient liquidity in order to ensure safe and sound banking operations.

Year ended 31st December, 2018

  As a part of liquidity risk management, Kenechukwu MFB manages its liquidity by keeping cash resources to  
the recommended cash reserve ratio and non-mismatch of funds.

38.3.1 Management of Liquidity Risk

38.4.1 Management of Market Risk

  The primary components of market risk for Kenechukwu MFB result from interest risk.

38.4.3 Interest Rate Risk

39  Financial Instruments: Fair Value Measurements

  Interest rate risk in the banking book is the potential loss resulting from net asset value changes and the future 
development of net interest income due to adverse interest rate shifts. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair 
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

  The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and approximate fair values of those financial instruments 
not held at fair value (Amortized Cost):

  Market risk is defined as the risk of loss caused by open positions in the market and the adverse development 
of market risk factors such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and their 
volatilities. Market risk can arise in conjunction with trading and non-trading activities of the financial 
institutions.

  The main objective of market risk management is to provide strategic guidance to all stakeholders on  
Kenechukwu MFB's overall approach to the management of interest rate risk

  Kenechukwu MFB's major measurement technique used to measure and control market risk is outlined  
below.

38.4.2 Measurement of Market Risk

  This note provides information about how the bank determines fair value of various financial assets and 
financial liabilities. Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position comprises cash and 
cash equivalents, due from other banks, loans and advances to customers, held-to-maturity financial assets, 
prepayments and other assets.

38.4 Market Risk
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   31-Dec-18                         31-Dec-17 

      Carrying amount  Fair value  Carrying amount  Fair value 

      N  N  N  N 

 Financial Assets            
 Cash and cash equivalents   14,690,830  14,690,830  10,322,880  10,322,880 

 Other financial assets  463,250,708  463,250,708  382,060,599  382,060,599 

 Loans and advances to customers  926,492,724  926,492,724  808,615,243  808,615,243 

 Held-to-maturity financial assets  350,000,000  350,000,000  200,000,000   200,000,000  

 Other assets  22,864,340  22,864,340  12,288,444  12,288,444 

      1,777,298,602  1,777,298,602  1,413,287,166  1,413,287,166 

 Financial Liabilities         
 Deposits from customers  1,205,608,714  1,205,608,714  965,305,096  965,305,096 
 Other liabilities     244,618,117  244,618,117  150,933,385  150,933,385 

      1,450,226,831  1,450,226,831  1,116,238,481  1,116,238,481 

        

 

ii. Other Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of these balances is their fair value

v. Deposits from Banks and Customers Including Overdraft

The carrying amounts of these balances are their fair value.

Loans and advances to customers are carried at amortized cost net of provision for impairment. The estimated fair 
value of loans and advances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be 
received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

Kenechukwu MFB has no financial asset measured at initial and subsequent-to-initial measurement.

Fair value methods and assumptions

iv. Held-To-Maturity Financial Assets

i. Cash and Cash Equivalents

iii. Loans and Advances to Customers

Treasury bills represent short-term instruments issued by the CBN.  The fair value of treasury bills is determined 
with reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits and 
overdraft, is the amount repayable on demand.  The estimated fair values of fixed interest-bearing deposits are 
determined using a discounted cash flow model based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term 
to maturity.

Other assets represent monetary assets which usually have a short recycle period and as such the fair values of 
these balances approximate their carrying amount.

Other liabilities represent monetary liabilities which usually have a short recycle period and as such the fair values 
of these balances approximate their carrying amount.

vi. Other Assets

vii. Other Liabilities
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 2018    2017   

 N  %  N  % 
Gross earnings 352,004,606    313,274,825   

Interest paid (30,734,071)    (23,210,099)   

 321,270,535    290,064,726   

        

Administration overheads and payments for other supplies (64,384,461)    (72,442,718)   

        
Value Added  256,886,074  100  217,622,008  100 

        

Applied as follows:        

        

In Payment to Employee:        

¾ Salaries and wages 116,266,987  45  90,760,765  42 

¾ Directors' emoluments 8,803,734  4  6,513,195  3 

        

In Payment to Government:        

¾ Taxation 10,826,263  4  12,610,162  6 

        

Retained for Future Replacement of Assets        

¾ Depreciation 9,834,947  4  6,232,037   2 

¾ Profit reinvested in business 85,483,814  33  81,748,308  38 

¾ Dividend paid 25,614,425  10  16,711,055  8 

¾ Deferred taxation 55,904  0  3,046,486  1 

Value Added  256,886,074  100  217,622,008  100 

        

 
Value added represents the additional wealth which the bank has been able to create by its own and its employees' 
efforts. The statement shows the allocation of that wealth between employees, shareholders, government and that 
retained for future creation of more wealth.

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
stYear ended 31  December 2018
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 2018  2017  2016  2015  2014 
 N’000  N’000  N’000  N’000  N’000 

Assets          

Cash and cash equivalents 14,691  10,323  4,789   10,873   11,916  

Due from other banks 463,251  382,061  129,170   248,087   218,411  

Loans and advances 931,862  811,060  738,455   706,771   522,741  

Held-to-maturity financial assets 350,000  200,000  300,000   60,000   30,000  

Prepayments 2,799  1,884  2,218   1,522   1,756  

Other assets 22,864  12,288  14,206   10,069   2,498  

Property, plant and equipment 59,017  58,623  52,101   51,727   33,727  

Intangible assets 2,113  2,566  2,982   2,757   945 

Total Assets
 

1,846,652
  

1,478,805
  

1,243,921
   

1,091,806
   

821,994 
 

          

Liabilities
          

Current deposits and other accounts
 

1,205,609
  

965,305
  

796,145 
  

677,902 
  

556,815 
 

Other liabilities
 

244,618
  

150,933
  

123,199 
  

131,651 
  

26,194 
 

Deferred tax liabilities
 

11,582
  

11,527
  

8,480 
  

7,902 
  

5,688 
 

Current tax payable
 

10,826
  

12,610
  

15,127 
  

34,321 
  

17,930 
 

Total Liabilities
 

1,472,636
  

1,140,375
  

942,951 
  

851,777 
  

606,627 
 

          

Equity
          

Share capital
 

99,795
  

99,795
  

99,520 
  

99,520 
  

84,758 
 

Share premium
 

24,221
  

24,221
  

23,946 
  

23,946 
  

9,183 
 

Statutory reserve
 

131,255
  

109,884
  

89,447 
  

74,251 
  

65,266 
 

Regulatory risk reserve
 

11,276
  

7,492
  

1,687 
  

1,530 
  

399 
 

Retained earnings
 

107,470
  

97,038
  

86,370 
  

40,783 
  

55,762 
 

Shareholders' Fund
 

374,016
  

338,430
  

300,970 
  

240,030
   

215,367 
 

          

Total Liabilities and Equity
 

1,846,652
  

1,478,805
  

1,243,921
   

1,091,806
   

821,994 
 

          

Statement of Comprehensive

          

Revenue

 

352,005

  

313,275

  

260,091 

  

221,384 

  

163,287 

 

          

Profit before taxation

 

96,366

  

101,479

  

76,660 

  

60,984 

  

48,455 

 

Income tax

 

(10,826)

  

(16,684)

  

(15,298) 

  

(22,829) 

  

(17,930) 

 

Deferred taxation

 

(56)

  

(3,046)

  

(578) 

  

(2,214) 

  

(1,835) 

 

Profit after taxation

 

85,484

  

81,748

  

60,784

   

35,941 

  

28,691 

 

          

Earnings per share

          

Earnings per share (kobo) -

 

actual

 

86

   

82

   

61 

  

36 

  

34 

 

Earnings per share (kobo) -

 

adjusted

 

86

   

82

     

61 

  

36 

  

34 

 

 

Statement of Financial Position

stYear ended 31  December 2018
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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  2018  2017 

  N  N 
     

Interest income  299,067,064  258,967,623 

Interest expenses
  

(31,197,529)
  

(20,100,695)
 

Net interest income
  

267,869,535
  

238,866,928
 

Net fee and commission
  

36,900,185
  

29,779,154
 

Other income
  

16,037,357
  

24,528,048
 

  
320,807,077

  
293,174,130

 

Impairment charge for credit losses
  

463,458
  

(3,109,404)
 

  

321,270,535
  

290,064,725
 

     
     
     

Operating expenses:

     

Salaries and wages 

  

108,540,407

  

85,515,415

 

Office expenses 

  

8,734,741

  

6,495,330

 

Transport and Travelling 

  

2,476,310

  

9,472,564

 

Advertisement 

  

2,755,005

  

5,257,900

 

Public relations 

  

680,750

  

1,000,850

 

Printing and stationery 

  

2,801,860

  

1,077,040

 

Entertainment 

  

1,964,935

  

1,768,950

 

Directors' expenses 

  

8,803,734

  

6,513,195

 

Repairs and maintenance 

  

5,205,805

  

4,167,951

 

Rents and rates 

  

4,190,040

  

3,618,000

 

Postages, telephone and telegraph 

  

1,450,410

  

1,379,475

 

Staff training and development 

  

7,726,580

  

5,245,350

 

Bank charges 

  

8,983,311

  

5,264,105

  

Insurance 

  

10,068,786

  

6,181,420

 

Directors' sitting allowances 

  

4,354,640

  

3,034,540

 

Security expenses 

  

3,088,800

  

860,095

 

Information technology expenses 

  

6,895,006

  

7,454,674

 

Electricity, light, power and water 

  

4,190,670

  

5,175,780

 

Corporate expenses 

  

8,440,800

  

11,975,100

 

Fuel and oil expenses 

  

5,398,603

  

3,298,428

 

Hotel expenses 

  

790,850

  

678,100

 

Employers' pension contribution 

  

3,666,689

  

3,353,045

 

AGM expenses 

  

2,169,765

  

2,716,650

 

Audit and accountancy fees 

  

630,000

  

630,000

 

Legal and professional fees 

  

1,061,110

  

220,000

 

  

215,069,607

  

182,353,957

 

Depreciation

  

9,834,947

  

6,232,037

 

Operating profit before taxation

  

96,365,981

  

101,478,732

 

     

 

stYear ended 31  December 2018
DETAILED PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
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Journal 
No. 

Account Code Description DR 
N 

78,958,895 

CR 
N 

78,958,895 
     
1. 30100001 Statutory Reserve 3,914,163  

 20300010 Provision for Placement with Other Banks 500,000  

 50200001 Provision On Risk Assets – Specific Exp 500,605  

 20300005 Loan Loss Provision Specific 33,203,444  

 30100005 Retained Earnings  4,914,768 

 20350050 Allowance For Loan Impairment  33,203,444 

  Being opening balance difference between now 2017 
audited accounts and the Bank’s ledger as at 1/1/2018, 
now adjusted for.  

  

     

2. 50350021 Insurance & Licence Exp 369,170  

 10850015  Prepaid Insurance Premium  369,170 

  Being adjustment to agree prepaid insurnace premium 
schedule with the trial balance figure as at 31st December, 
2018. 

  

    989,439  

  Being correction of previous year audit journal wrongly 
posted by client. 

  

     

3. 40150004 Other Investment Income 626,857  

 20300020 Provision For Diminution In Value of Investments  626,857 

  Being adjustment to restate the Provision For Diminution 
in Quoted investments wrongly written off during the year 
by the Bank. 

  

     

4. 20350050 Allowance For Loan Impairment 463,458  

 50200001 Provision On Risk Assets – Specific Exp 2,873,672  

 20300001 Loan Loss Provision General 7,116,129  

 50200002 Provision On Risk Assets – General Exp  10,025,741 

 50350055 Other Known Losses Exp  427,518 

  Being adjustment to recognixe impairment charge on 
loan losses for the year. 

  

     

5. 50050005 Commission Charges On Bank Transactions 1,504,717  

 10050015-02 Ecobank Nig. Limited Gold Savings Account 11,040  

 10050005-02 Access Bank Current Account  57,404 

 10050005-01 Access Bank IPSA Account   79 

 10050010 Diamond Bank Plc  252,690 

 10050015-01 Ecobank Nig. Limited – Current Account  13,725 

 01-10050020-00001 First Bank Of Nigeria Ltd Nsukka  152,087 

 03-10050020-00003 First Bank Of Nigeria Ltd Obollo-Afor  113,786 

 10050025 Key Stone Bank Ltd  42 

 10050030 Union Bank Plc  2,093 

 10050040 Zenith Bank Plc  402,826 

 10050050 Guaranty Trust Bank Plc  1,673 

 10050045 Fidelity Bank Plc  6,882 

 10050035 United Bank for Africa Plc  501,430 

 40150011 Other Miscellaneous Income  11,040 

  Being bank charges and bank interests from the 
correspondent bank accounts as at 31 st December, 2018 
omitted in the ledger, now recognized.  

  

AUDIT JOURNALS 
KENECHUKWU MICROFINANCE BANK NIG. PLC

st
For the Year ended 31  December 2018
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Journal 
No. 

Account Code Description DR 
N 

78,958,895 

CR 
N 

78,958,895 
     

6. 30100005 Retained Earnings 3,784,145  

 30100020 Statutory Credit Reserve  3,784,145 

  Being differences between Prudential Guidelines 
provision and IFRS loan impairment computations, now 
adjusted for. 

  

     

7. 30100005 Retained Earnings 24,091,495  

 30100005 Statutory Reserve  24,091,495 

  Being adjustment to recognize transfer to statutory 
reserve account from profit for the year.  

  

 
 

AUDIT JOURNAL Cont'd

For the Year ended 31st December, 2018
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS ITEMS:   
S/N A/C CODE DESCRIPTION N 
1  INTEREST INCOME  
 40010004-18 INTEREST INCOME 299,067,064 

   299,067,064 
    

2  COMMISSION INCOME  
 40100004 ACCOUNT MAINTAINANCE FEE  23,797,325 
 40100005 OTHER COMMISSION RECEIVED 13,092,200 
 40100008 RECOVERIES – OTHER ACCOUNTS 10,660 

   36,900,185 
    

3  FEES INCOME  
 40050003 MANAGEMENT FEES 100 
 40050002 LOAN PROCESSING FEES 3,173,501 
 40050005 DOCUMENTATION FEES  1,829,700 
 40050007 MONITOING FEES 2,500 
 40050008 OTHER FEES 23,598 

   5,029,399 
    

4  OTHER INCOME  
 40150004 OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME ON SECURITIES 165,375 
 40150007 INCOME FROM CHEQUE BOOK SALES 1,489,390 
 40150008 INCOME FROM WITHDRAWAL BOOKLET SALES  1,245,430 
 40150009 SMS ALERT INCOME  2,233,140 
 40150011 OTHER MISCELANOUS INCOME 475,625 
 40150001 ELECTRONIC TRANSFER 2,200 
 40150005 RENT RECEIVED INCOME 1,200,000 
 40150013 ATM CARD ISSUANCE INCOME  - 

   6,811,160 
    

5  INTEREST EXPENSES  
 5010001 INTEREST EXPENSE CURRENT ACCOUNT 34 
 5010002 INTEREST EXPENSE SAVINGS DEPOSITS  13,528,620 
 5010003 FIXED DEPOSITS 15,182,895 
 5010005 HEAD OFFICE 1,026,701 
 5010006 ORBA BRANCH 785,531 
 5010007 OBOLLO-AFOR BRANCH 673,748 

   31,197,529 
    

6  BANK CHARGES  
 50050005 COMMISSION CHARGES ON BANK TRANSACTIONS 8,473,311 
 50050007 SMS ALERT EXPENSES  510,000 

   8,983,311 

    
7  SALARIES AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
 5010001 BASIC SALARIES 86,740,517 
 5010003 TRANSPORT ALLOWANCE  7,700 
 5010006 ENTERTAINMENT ALLOWANC E 10,750 
 5010010 ACTING ALLOWANCE  100,845 
 5010011 LEAVE ALLOWANCE  4,763,648 
 5010020 13TH MONTH SALARY 3,382,089 
 5010021 STAFF EXGRATIA EXPENSES  - 
 5010022 STAFF TELEPHONE ALLOWANCE  15,900 
 5010023 INDUSTIAL TRAINEES SALARY  11,078,858 
 5010025 STIPEND ON SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT  10,000 
 5035037 CHRISTIMAS EXPENSES 2.430,100 

   108,540,407 
    

8  PREPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE   
 50150001 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT - 
 50150002 LAND AND BUILDING 65,850 
 50150003 PLANT AND MACHINERY  950,220 
 50150004 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,566,450 

KENECHUKWU MICROFINANCE BANK
ST

SCHEDULE OF MERGED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  DECEMBER, 2018
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 50150005 COMPUTER HARDWARE  3,000 
 50150006 OFFICE FURNITURE AND FITTINGS 1,505,190 
    

SCHEDULE OF MERGED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST DECEMBER, 2018 Cont’d 
    

S/N A/C CODE DESCRIPTION N 
 50150007 MOTO VEHICLE 520,135 
 50150008 OFFICE PREMISES 594,960 

   5,205,805 
    

10  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION AND OTHER EXPENSES   
 50300001 FEES 3,344,000 
 50300002 PASSAGE ALLOWANCE  - 
 50300004 OTHERS 5,459,734 

   8,803,734 
    

11  OFFICE EXPENSES  
 50350007 OFFICE CONSUMABLES 4,664,091 
 50350013 CLEANING AND SANITATION  79,450 
 50350014 OTHER ADMIN EXPENSES 64,600 
 50350047 LOAN RECOVERY EXPENSES  - 
 50350027 CHEQUE BOOK EXPENSES - 
 50350048 CASH SHORTAGE  2,000 
 50350051 MISCELANEOUS 1,895,000 
 50350059 OPERATIONAL RISK EXPENSES  2,029,600 

   8,734,741 
    

12  TRANSPORT AND TRAVELLING   
 50350005 BUSINESS TRAVELS  900 
 50350006 TRANSPORT EXPENSES – LOCAL 1,145,245 
 50350031 SPECIE MOVEMENT EXPENSES 441,300 
 50350028 LOCAL TRAVEL  - 
 50350056 RECOVERY EXPENSES - 
 50350058 INDUSTRIAL TRAINEES TRANSPOT EXPENSES  888,865 

   2,476,310 
    

13  PUBLIC RELATIONS  
 50350002 DONATIONS AND CHARITY  500 
 50350036 PUBLIC RELATIONS AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT  680,250 

   680,750 
    

14  ENTERTAINME NT EXPENSES  
 50350035 BUSINESS LUNCH AND ENTERTAINMENT  1,908,935 
 50350042 AUDITORS EXPENSES 56,000 

   1,964,935 
    

15  RENT AND RATES   
 50350011 OFFICE RENT 2,910,000 
 50350030 RATES FEES AND TAXES  1,280,040 

   4,190,040 
    

16  POSTAGES AND T ELEPHONE EXPENSES  
 50350023 POSTAGE 2,700 
 50350025 TELEPHONE 1,447,710 

   1,450,410 
    

17  INSURANCE EXPENSES  
 50350021 INSURANCE AND LICENCE 5,267,782 
 50350022 NDIC EXPENSES 4,801,004 

   10,068,786 
    

18  ELECTRICITY LIGHT POWER AND WATER   
 50350009 ELECTRICITY 756,030 
 50350018 GENERATOR RUNNING EXPENSES  3,434,640 

   4,190,670 
    

19  FUEL AND OIL EXPENSES   
 50350008 MOTOR VEHICLE RUNNING EXPENSES 1,321,290 
 50350017 DIESEL EXPENSES 685,640 
 50350016 FUEL AND LUBRICANTS 3,391,673 

   5,398,603 
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SCHEDULE OF MERGED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST DECEMBER, 2018 Cont’d 

    

S/N A/C CODE DESCRIPTION N 
20  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY EXPENSES   
 50350019 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  6,416,522 
 50350054 INFORMATION TE CHNOLOGY TAX EXPENSES  25,000 
 50450001 COMPUTER SOFTWARE  453,484 

   6,895,006 
    

21  LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL FEES   
 50350039 LEGAL FEES 291,110 
 50350043 OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 770,000 

   1,061,110 
    

22  PROVISION FOR RISK ASSETS LOSSES  
 50350001 PROVISION ON RISK ASSETS – SPECIFIC EXPENSES (463,458) 
 50350002 PROVISION ON RISK ASSETS – GENERAL EXPENSES - 
 50350005 OTHER ASSETS PROVISION EXPENSES - 
 50350055 OTHER KNOWN LOSSES - 
 50350045 BAD DEBTS PROV.  - 

   (463,458) 
    

23  DEPRECIATION EXPENSES  
 50400001 MOTOR VEHICLES 3,834,113 
 50400002 FURNITURE AND FIXTURES 922,455 
 50400003 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 587,869 
 50400004 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 961,118 
 50400005 PLANT AND MACHINERY  1,265,387 
 50400006 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT 210,322 
 50400007 LAND AND BUILDING 2,053,683 

   9,834,947 
    

 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS:   
S/N A/C CODE DESCRIPTION N 
    

24  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
 10010001 CASH IN VAULT  13,624,500 
 10010005 TELLERS 1,066,330 

   14,690,830 
    

25  BANK BALANCES  
 10050005-00001 ACCESS BANK IPSA A/C  17,927,411 
 10050005-00002 ACCESS BANK CURRENT - 
 10050010 DIAMOND BANK PLC 3,385,494 
 10050015-00001 ECOBANK NIG. LTD CURRENT ACCOUNT  3,907,030 
 10050015-00002 ECOBANK GOLD SAVINGS ACCOUNT  - 
 01-10050020-00001 FIRST BANK NIG. LTD NSUKKA BRANCH  32,812,241 
 02-10050020-00001 FIRST BANK NIG. LTD ORBA BRANCH  - 
 03-10050020-00001 FIRST BANK NIG. LTD OBOLLO -AFOR BRANCH - 
 10050025 KEYSTONE BANK LTD  17,130 
 10050030 UNION BANK OF NIG PLC 100,421,779 
 10050035 UNITED BANK FOR AFRICA PLC  72,974,556 
 10050040 ZENITH BANK PLC 119,609,277 
 10050045 FIDELITY BANK PLC ENUGU 111,544,253 
 10050050 QUARANTY TRUST BANK PLC NSUKKA 651,537 
 20300010 PROV. – PLACEMENT WITH OTHER BANKS - 

   463,250,708 
    

26  CURRENT DEPOSITS  
 20100001 INDIVIDUAL (25,773,377) 
 20100005 CORPORATE  (6,727,211) 
 20100015 STAFF (4,724,369) 
 20100010 DIRECTOS (855,884) 
 20100020 JOINT ACCOUNT (63,538,971) 
 20100025 MICROFINANCE SMES (442,444) 
 20100030 PRIMARY SCHOOLS (78,433,189) 
 20100035 SECONDARY SCHOOLS (70,659,121) 
 20100040 MINISTRIES (10,327,003) 
 20100045 PUBLIC SERVICES (17,533,309) 
 20100050 AGRIC LOAN (1,450,303) 
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   (280,465,181) 
    

SCHEDULE OF MERGED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST DECEMBER, 2018 Cont’d 
    

S/N A/C CODE DESCRIPTION N 
  SAVINGS DEPOSITS   
 20150001 INDIVIDUALS (223,785,795) 
 20150005 CORPORATE/JOINT PARTNERS  (272,764,139) 
 20150025 DAILY SAVINGS CONTRIBUTION  (189,229,094) 
 20150015 MICRO-CREDIT – ASA MODEL (16,989,102) 
 20150030 KMFB THRIFT ACCOUNT (19,218,983) 
 20150010 SAVINGS STAFF/DIRECTORS  (5,858) 
 20150040 SAVINGS TORSA  (13,982,908) 
 20150045 KMFB THRIFT ACCOUNT - 
 20150035 MICROFINANCE SMES (1,100) 
 20150050 KENECHUKWU CHILDREN ACCOUNT (2,209,727) 
 20150020 MICROFINANCE (21,205) 

   (738,207,911) 
    

28  FIXED DEPOSITS  
 20200001 FIXED DEPOSIT-BACK END (152,381,854) 
 20200005 FIXED DEPOSIT-FRONT END (34,553,768) 
   (186,935,622) 
    

29  WITHHOLDING TAX PAYABLE   
 20400005 WHT PAYABLE STATE  (3,639,158) 
 20400050 WHT ON DIVIDEND (10,232,883) 
   (13,872,041) 
    

30  INTEREST PAYABLE   
 20500005 INTEREST PAYABLE F/D INDIVIDUALS  (1,110,074) 
 20500010 INTEREST PAYABLE IF/D OTHERS  (765,289) 

   (1,875,364) 
    

31  OTHER CREDITORS  
 20300015 PROV. - OTHER KNOWN LOSSES (6,874,282) 
 20350001 SUSPENSE ACCOUNT FORMS (304,850) 
 20350005 SUSPENSE ACCOUNT FORMS (7,141,207) 
 20350040 CASH SUSPENSE (7,200) 
 20350045 DEPOSIT FOR SHARES - 
 20400080 MICRO-CREDIT RESERVE ACCOUNT  (2,100) 
 20400085 CBN SME LOAN SUSPENSE ACCOUNT (56,866,000) 
 20400090 MICRO-CREDIT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT - 
 20400095 DAILY SAVINGS RESERVE  (187,339) 
 20400115 REFUND OF MISSING FUND - 
 20450001 INT. RECEIVED IN ADVANCE TREASURY BILL  (298,683) 
 20400040 PENSION FUND PAYABLE EMPLOYEE CONT.  (31,104) 
 20250001 INTEREST IN SUSPENSE (491,035) 
 20300001 LOAN LOSS PROVISION GENERAL (2,909,612) 
 20300005 LOAN LOSS PROVISION SPECIFIC (786,541) 
 20300010 PROV. -PLACEMENT WITH OTHER BANKS - 
 20300020 TELLERS OVERAGES ACCOUNT/CASH SURPLUS (106,050) 

   (76,006,003) 
    

32  PREPAYMENTS   
 10850001 PREPAID RENT 188,160 
 10850005 PREPAID RATES  - 
 10850020 PREPAID GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM  559,141 
 10850080 PREPAID OTHERS 333,333 
 10850045 PREPAID TAINING  - 
 10850050 PREPAID UNCOMPLETED TRANSACTION  101,000 
 10850060 PREPAID OTHER STAFF BENEFITS  - 
 10850085 PREPAYMENT – ATM CARDS - 
 10850015 PREPAYMENTS – INSURANCE PREMIUM 1,617,863 

   2,799,497 
    

33  OTHER ASSETS  
 10900005-50 SUSPENSE ACCOUNTS 3,328,000 
 10950001-20 STATIONARY IN STOCK  3,790,721 
 10700005-55 INTEREST RECEIVABLE  14,497,608 
 11000001 TELLER SHORTAGES  - 
 11000035 IMPREST ACCOUNT TOP MGT STAFF  - 
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 11000040 SUSPENSE ACCOUNT – REFUND OF MISSING FUNDS 318,868 

   21,935,197 

    
SCHEDULE OF MERGED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST DECEMBER, 2018 Cont’d 

    
S/N A/C CODE DESCRIPTION N 

34  LOANS CIVIL SERVANTS   
 10400001 INDIVIDUALS 154,009,244 
 10400010 CORPORATE  1,597,500 
 10400020 OTHER LOANS 1,449,027 
 10500001 UNN-CIVIL SERVANTS  47,493,894 
 10500005 ESUT-CIVIL SERVANTS  4,267,177 
 10500010 PRIMARY-CIVIL SERVANTS  227,319,641 
 10500015 SECONDARY-CIVIL SERVANTS  251,795,536 
 10500020 UNN PENSION LOANS 90,000 
 10500025 EHAMUFU COLLEGE OF EDUCATION -CIVIL SERVANTS  2,094,444 
 10550005 HIGH COURT REGISTRY -CIVIL SERVANTS  3,891,483 
 10550010 HEALTH MGT. BOARD -CIVIL SERVANTS  5,718,430 
 10550015 POLITICAL & LOCAL GOVT. -CIVIL SERVANTS  12,466,435 
 10550040 MINISTRY LOAN 19,388,455 
 10550045 TERM LOAN AGRIC 32,565,416 
 10550035 PPSMB NSUKKA ZONE-CIVIL SERVANTS  472,500 
 10550020 PPSMB NSUKKA ZONE-CIVIL SERVANTS  21,496,158 
 10550025 EKETE LGDC OVOKO 4,288,639 
 10550030 PPSMB OBOLLO ZONE-CIVIL SERVANTS  382,500 
 10350015-30 OVERDRAWN SAVINGS ACCOUNT  5,894,042 
 10300001-50 OVERDRAWN CURRENT ACCOUNT  59,577,995 

   856,258,516 

    
35  LOAN SME/GROUP  
 10450001 MICROFINANCE LOANS-SMES 5,966,667 
 10450005 MICROFINANCE LOANS-GROUP - 
 10450015 SAVINGS MICROFINANCE LOANS -ASA MODEL 41,743,512 
 10450010 CBN MICROFINANCE LOANS 5,330,557 

   53,040,736 

    
36  INVESTMENT IN STOCK  
 10600001 INVESTMENT IN SHARES (ZENITH BANK) 1,556,000 
 20300020 PROV. -DIMINITION IN VALUE OF INVESTMENT  (626,857) 

   929,143 

    
37  LOAN LOSS PROVISION  
 20350050 ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN IMPAIRMENT  (32,739,986) 

   1,756,886,951 
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Signature:.......................Date:.........................

1/We…………………..……………....……

……………………………...…….. being a 

m e m b e r / m e m b e r s  o f   K e n e c h u k w u 

Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc, hereby appoint 

Chief/ Dr./ Mr./ Mrs./ Miss................................

................................................................of......

....................... as my/our  proxy to act  and  

vote  for  me/us and vote for any on my/our 
thbehalf at  the  9    Annual  General  Meeting of  

Kenechukwu  Microfinance Bank Nig. Plc 
ndholding  on 22  November, 2019 at 12:00 noon 

prompt or at any adjournment thereof.

NOTE: Please detach this   part and retain it 

for admission to the meeting.   

Accreditation of members starts by 

9:00 am.

Shareholder’s Name: ......................................

Resolution                                         For        Against 

3. To     re - elect Directors.

2. To declare dividend.

5. To authorize the Directors to 
fix the remuneration of the 
Auditors

4. To    approve    the 
remuneration of the 
Directors.

1. To receive the Report of     the 
D i r ec to r s ,  t he  Aud i t ed 
Accounts for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 together 
w i t h  t h e  r e p o r t  o f  t h e 
Auditors.

Please indicate with 'X' in the Appropriate box how you 
would wish your vote to be cast on Resolutions set out 
above.

No. of Shares ……………..……...…….

                                                                Barr. M.A. Obayi

46 Enugu Road

Enugu State

REGISTERED OFFICE:                    BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Bishop Shanahan Hospital Annex

Nsukka 

                                                                (Company Secretary)
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NOTE


